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OVERVIEW OF THE COMPANY

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) is engaged in
the production and sale of Isuzu light-duty trucks, multi-purposes
vehicles, pick-up trucks, heavy-duty trucks, other vehicles and
automobile parts and accessories. All of the production facilities of
the Group are located in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC")
and substantially all the sales of the Group are also made in the
PRC. The Group has made an export sales to Japan during the year,
which accounted for approximately 3.30% of the Group's turnover
for the year.

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

The Group had 3,030 employees as at 31st December, 2007.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

Dear Shareholders,

| am pleased to present the annual report of Qingling Motors Co.,
Ltd. (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 December 2007 for your review.

2007 RESULTS

For the year ended 31 December 2007, the Company sold 32,380
vehicles, an increase of 6.23% over the 30,482 vehicles in last year.
Turnover reached RMB3.76 billion, an increase of 12.57% over the
RMB3.34 billion in last year. Profit after taxation was RMB171.11
million, an increase of 115.31% over the RMB79.47 million last
year.

REVIEW OF OPERATION

Attributable to the relentless effort and great dedication of the
staff, encouraging results in production and operation has been
achieved by the Company in 2007. Both the domestic and overseas
markets have sustained relative rapid growth, with operating quality,
efficiency and effectiveness per capita significantly increased. The
new competitiveness arising from development of new products
and enhancement in performance-price ratio provided the Company
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B ORREREET with impetus to leverage on its advantages and develop rapidly in
o 2008.
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Competitiveness newly resulted from development of
new products and enhancement in performance-price ratio
of products. Firstly, the deficiency and limitation of the
Company’s commercial vehicles product mix have been
perfected. The technological preparation for production of
medium duty commercial vehicles of 5 to 7 tons and heavy
duty commercial vehicles of 15 tons was completed. Secondly,
the newly developed petrol and diesel driven engines of
the existing products complies with the Euro Il Emission
Standard. These, coupled with the gradual results achieved by
the cost reduction activities, the performance-price ratio of the
products was significantly increased.

Continuous effort in enhancing the Company’s capability in
marketing and after-sales services. In 2007, the Company
strengthened the implementation of marketing measures
in accordance with the new marketing mechanism. New
results have been achieved in areas such as building of
marketing network, expansion of customer base, fundamental
management in marketing, promoting dealers in compliance
of 4S, supply of supplements and establishment of multi-
regional marketing pattern. The new results has supported the
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BEFHERE EA-ZEZ growth in sales for the year and laid a solid foundation for the
NEREEIT T TREER - expansion of sales in 2008.
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3 RHERRZEIHRAEKEIN 3. Continuous enlargement in overseas export markets of parts,
HOmE - —ME O ER accessories and assembly. Firstly, the structure of export
EERAE SHMNNEEmD products was adjusted to further enhance the proportion of
OhE&E—FRe  —=E export of high value-added products. Secondly, purchase
BERBE®MD O/ RE orders for new export products were secured on the basis of
FHOERE HOE® its stable export of the existing products. The market prospect
WS EEN  —2EE for the export products was sound. Thirdly, the Company will
EFEOERREITIE R continue to strive for excellent after-sales services for exports
SRAPRER - to enhance the users’ satisfaction.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

4. Persistent enhancement in management standard. Capitalizing
the continuous promotion of domestic production of parts
and accessories and expansion of export markets, the
Company determined to exercise management in view of the
management requirement “One Standard, Two Markets”.
Benefited from the joint operation with Isuzu, it actively learnt
the advanced thinking, concept and method of management
in foreign countries, enhancing the management level of
the Company under the effect of high standard and high
requirements.

Outlooks and Prospects

2008 is an important year for the Company to carry on its
development under the Eleventh Five-Year Plan in the past and
open up the future. In connection with the external factors, the
State will enforce the energy-saving and emission-reducing policy.
Starting from July, the Euro Il Emission Regulations will come into
full effect in the vehicle industry. The operation order of commercial
vehicles will become more organized. New opportunities will arise
from the development of commercial vehicles of high technological
content and high quality. In connection with the internal factors,
after establishing the joint venture of engines, the Company has
developed two major businesses, namely the finished vehicles and
engines, contributing unique competitive edge in the commercial
vehicles industry to Qingling.

The Company will capitalize opportunities to step up its effort to
rapid development and develop on its resources edges in both
the finished vehicles and engines business over the market.
Regarding the finished vehicles business, by launching new
products and taking advantage of the price competitiveness of
some of its existing products, the Company will boost up the sales
of finished vehicles to a higher level to support the development
of the Company. Regarding the engines business, leveraging on
the separate operation of the engines company, the Company will
cultivate the engine business as a separate business. It will also
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

secure increases in both the domestic and overseas markets of the
Group. Major targets are as follows:

1. Commencement of the "Exercise of Improving Production
Quality” with high efficiency. A strong quality assurance
system will be established by going into highly efficient,
diversified and bulk production. Such highly efficient,
diversified and bulk production will reveal the defects in
different fundamental management areas such as equipments,
cutting instruments, handicrafts, logistics, measurement and
inspection, standard setting and production organization.
The Company will swiftly formulate rectifying measures
to overcome difficulties and implement fundamental
management and enhance the Company’s integrated
management level, in order to achieve stable production of
quality products with high efficiency and low costs.

2. Rapid enhancement of capability in marketing and after-
sales services. The Company will continue to uphold its
requirements to “enhance implementation and strengthen
execution”. It will continue to promote regional marketing
hierarchy to refine the measures and impose and implement
such measures. By regulating the quality, quantity and
timeframe in accordance to requirements of practicability,
details, depth, penetration and speed, the Company will rapidly
strengthen major measures such as “building of marketing
network”, "“expansion of customer base”, “fundamental

moou

management in marketing”, “promoting dealers in compliance
of 4S” and “supply of supplements”, so as to enlarge the
high-end market and enter into the medium-end market,

establishing a multi-regional marketing pattern.

3. Continuous expansion of overseas market to enhance the
Company’s integrated management level. Firstly, along
with the continuous expansion in the product range and
scale of the exports, the Company will again strengthen the
competitiveness of its new product QCD by complying to
the requirements of the “Exercise of Improving Production
Quality” with high efficiency. Secondly, the Company will
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

insist to consider quality to be its priority. It will continue to
optimize its export product structure to confront with adverse
effects such as changes in exchange rate, increasing price
of raw materials and rises in labour costs and to enhance its
profitability.

4.  Continuous development of cost reduction activities to further
increase the performance-price ratio of the products. Firstly,
the Company will focus on the products which have a relative
low domestic production rate and strengthen the promotion of
cost reduction activities to increase such domestic production
rate. Secondly, the Company will commence another round of
product structure adjustment to reduce its cost. Thirdly, it will
take implement refined purchases management and capitalize
its resources advantage to control the cost of purchases.
Fourthly, the Company will reduce its manufacturing cost with
the efficient method which has been long established.

5. Commitment to people-oriented principle and continuous
building and cultivation of quality team with extensive
technological knowledge, skills and aspiration. The Company
encourages every staff to continuously enhance their
techniques and skills on the job and fortify their own thinking,
conduct and moral. They are encouraged to develop innovative
ideas and contribute to the new development of the Company
with their wisdom and hard work, so as to pursue for a happier
life.

Facing the external environment where both challenges and
opportunities exist in 2008, the Company will take advantage of
the favourable external factors to expedite its progress to quality
and efficiency model and enhance the quality and level of external
cooperation. It will also speed up to capitalize the Company’s
established resources edge and capability and increase its market
share, in order to strive for satisfactory operating results for the
investors.

WU Yun
Chairman
22 April 2008
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS,
SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

DIRECTORS

Mr. WU Yun, aged 54, is Chairman of the Company. He also is
Chairman and General Manager of Qingling Group. Mr. WU, a senior
Economist, has been in the motor vehicle production industry for
over 27 years and has extensive experience in management and
finance. He is a standing director of the Sino- Foreign Investment
Association and a representative of Chongqing National People’s
Congress. Mr. WU graduated from Hunan University, specialising in
automobile studies.

Mr. GAO Jianmin, aged 48, is currently an executive director and
managing director of Silver Grant International Industries Limited
(Stock Code: 171) and an executive director of Jiangxi Copper
Company Limited (Stock Code: 358). These companies are listed on
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. Mr. GAO has more than 19 Years
experience in finance, industrial investment and development. He
holds a Bachelor degree in engineering from Qinghua University.

Mr. Yoshiyuki MIYATAKE, aged 54, is a general manager of the
Company. He graduated from Aoyama Gakuin University in Science
in March 1977 and joined Isuzu Motors Limited in April 1977. He
had been the manager of technology planning office, the head of
motor technology planning department of the production technology
planning office, the head of the domestic service improvement
office, the head of production management office, department head
of preparation for motors production department, the group leader
of the China cooperation project etc. He became an executive
director of Isuzu Motors Limited and the head of management
department second business affairs department in April 2005.
He became the director of Isuzu (China) Holdings Co., Ltd. on 28
October 2005.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS,
SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

DIRECTORS (Cont’'d)

Mr. Naotoshi TSUTSUMI, aged 62, graduated from the
Department of Mechanical Engineering of Faculty of Engineering
of Kagoshima University. He joined Isuzu Motors Limited from
April, 1968, and has nearly 40 years of experience in production,
manufacturing and technical management of Isuzu Motors Vehicles.

Mr. LIU Guangming, aged 54, is a Deputy General Manager of
the Company, Deputy Chairman and Deputy General Manager
of Qingling Group. He is also the Chairman of the Company's
remuneration committee. Mr. LIU is a Senior Economist and the
Vice Chairman of the Chongging Management Association and has
over 27 years experience in corporate management and personnel
management. He studied in universities in Japan, the United States
and Chongging and was previously a division head, Deputy Party
Secretary and Deputy Factory Manager and Party Secretary of
Qingling Group.

Mr. PAN Yong, aged 57, is a Deputy General Manager of the
Company, a Director and Deputy General Manager of Qingling
Group. Mr. Pan is a Senior Economist, has more than 27 years
experience in corporate management and sales. Mr. PAN graduated
from Hunan University, specialising in automobile studies.

Mr. YUE Huaqgiang, aged 63, is an assistant to the General
Manager of the Company and Deputy Chief Accountant of Qingling
Group. Mr. YUE is a Senior Accountant and has more than 34 years
experience in corporate financial management. Mr. YUE graduated
from Sichuan Finance and Trade School in 1964 and attended
the People’s Republic of China training programme for chief
accountants. He has been an Accounting Supervisor, Head of the
Financial Division, Deputy Chief Accountant and Chief Accountant of
the Company.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS,
SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

DIRECTORS (Cont’'d)

Mr. LONG Tao, aged 56, is the Chairman of Beijing Investment
Consultants Inc. and an associate professor of the Accountancy
division of Central Monetary and Finance College. Mr. LONG holds
a bachelor degree and a master degree in economics, and has more
than 21 years experience in accounting, finance, securities and
investment. He has also worked for the New York office of KPMG
Peat Marwick. He is currently an independent non-executive director
of Beijing Capital International Airport Company Limited (Stock
Code: 694), a company listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.
He is a member of both the Company’s audit committee and
remuneration committee.

Mr. SONG Xiaojiang, aged 57, is a General Manager of Chongging
Ping Zheng Law Office, a member of the China Economic Law
Association and the China lawyers Association, and a council
member of the Chongqging Lawyers Association. He is also the Vice
Chairman of the Foreign Affairs Committee of Chongging Lawyers
Association and a member of the Chongging Legal Academy.
Mr. SONG has been a lawyer and notary for 23 years. Mr. SONG
graduated form South West Institute of Political Science and Law.
He also studied international law in the China University of Political
Science and Law and foreign economic law at Shenzhen University.
He was formerly a Vice Chairman of Chongging Notary Office and
Vice Chairman of Chongging Foreign Law Office. He is the Chairman
of the Company’s audit committee and a member of the Company’s
remuneration committee.

Mr. XU Bingjin, aged 69, is the President of China
EuropeAssociation for Technical and Economic Cooperation,
Vice President of the World Trade Organization Institute, Part-
time Professor of Shanghai Foreign Trade College and Senior
Consultant of Northeastern University. He holds a Bachelor Degree
in Engineering Economics from Jilin Industrial University and is a
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS,
SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

DIRECTORS (Cont’'d)

Senior Engineer. Mr. XU has been a former assistant to the minister
of the Ministry of China Foreign Trade and Economic Cooperation,
Deputy Chief of the Delegation of China Entry to GATT and the
Delegation of China Entry to WTO. He is currently an independent
non-executive director of Brilliance China Automotive Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 1114), a company listed on the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange. He is a member of both the Company's audit
committee and remuneration Committee.

SUPERVISORS

Mr. MIN Qing, aged 40, is the Chairman of the Workers Union
of Qingling Group. She has 19 years experience in corporate
management. Ms. MIN graduated from Chongging Institute
of Communication in Mechanical Engineering in 1988 and
had undergraduate education. She had also studied corporate
management in Japan.

Mr. ZHOU Hong, aged 56, is the Deputy Secretary of the
Communist Party Discipline Commission of the Company and a
political specialist. She has 32 years experience in management.
Mr. ZHOU graduated from Sichuan Party Cadre Distant Learning
Institute in 1988, specializing in economic management.

Mr. ZHENG Gang, aged 38, is the deputy director of the Qingling
office of the Company. He was previously the secretary of the
Qingling office of the Company. He has 17 years experience
in corporate management. Mr. ZHENG graduated from Yuzhou
University in Mechanical Engineering in 1990. He also studied
production management in Japan.



BFEURR

REESBEKIIAKR  28KE
AEHERREDHRA - BB
RAEARRNGZERL BELAAE
BRAEHAERIE JFEFES
FoOUHARANEELE K
MBENBERERSEGRL 2
EERR HRRNEEEBRIE
HWABRERENABZIARE
ERMARBMERATR - AR
HaRROMEHETERNE

AEESTEBE ZEREHA
NAEAIMGEERE KRB mKRM
Hit @A ER -AEFTER/Y
BHEARHZE  SHREMNY
BEENAESABMAE  KER
EfIER -

AEFEFARH TESTSRE
XRREAFAENUHBERENLE
ZERENNEIRT R - K&
REER EF KELSRE
BEABFEEMABERILARA
BRRRETHRITA -

AEEEHARANEZE TR
ISR EREERTME
BARRBNERAMIFTTMED °

ME
EFETE

EF _ZEZENFNA-_+_-H

SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE’'S REPORT

TO SHAREHOLDERS:

Since the establishment of the Supervisory Committee, each
member has been performing his duty in accordance with the
Company’s Articles of Association with a view of protecting the
interests of shareholders and the Company. We have attended
the board meetings and have given our opinions regarding the
operations, technological reform and development of the Company
during board meetings. We have also monitored the guiding
ideology of the management and considered whether the decisions
made by the management were in compliance with state laws and
whether they were appropriate for the development of the Company
and were in the interests of shareholders.

According to its power, the Supervisory Committee has reviewed
evidence of the Company’s accounts, books, reports and other
accounting information from time to time. In our opinion, the
financial statements have been properly prepared while the
accounting principles and the method of financial management
adopted are in compliance with relevant rules and regulations.

We have carefully examined the financial statements, the
Directors’ Report and the proposal for appropriation of profit to
be presented before the forthcoming annual general meeting by
the Board of Directors. In our opinion, the chairman of the board,
directors, managers and senior management have not engaged
in any malpractices which would be prejudicial to the interests of
shareholders and employees of the Company.

The Supervisory Committee is satisfied with the performance as

well as the economic results of the Company, and we are confident
about the future development of the Company.

MIN Qing
Chairman of the Supervisory Committee

Chongging, 22nd April, 2008
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) present their
annual report and audited consolidated financial statements of the
Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 31st
December, 2007.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group is engaged in the production and sale of Isuzu light-duty
trucks, multi-purposes vehicles, pick-up trucks, heavy-duty trucks,
other vehicles and automobile parts and accessories. The activities
of its principal subsidiaries and a jointly controlled entity are set
out in notes 33 and 20 respectively to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31st December, 2007
are set out in the consolidated income statement on pages 42. The
directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of RMBO0.03
per share to the shareholders on the register of members on 26th
May, 2008, amounting to RMB74,468,000.

ESTABLISHMENT OF JOINT VENTURE COMPANY

Qingling Isuzu (Chongging) Engine Co., Ltd. (B# H T% (EE)
EENM AR AT, “Qingling Isuzu Engine”) was established in
May 2007, and is mainly engaged in manufacture of engines
and relevant parts. The registered capital is US$84,260,000,
and the Company contributed US$42,130,000, approximately
RMB307,743,000 to Qingling Isuzu Engine. The Company and Isuzu
Motors Limited (“Isuzu”) held 50% of issued capital respectively.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the year, the Group incurred approximately RMB26,387,000
on acquisition of property, plant and equipment for expansion of its
production facilities.

During the year, the Group transferred buildings at net book value
approximately RMB66,379,000 to investment properties.

During the vyear, an engine production line under development,
amounted to RMB121,095,000, was completed and transferred to
machinery.

During the year, the Group disposed two engine production lines
at net book value approximately RMB201,974,000 to a jointly
controlled entity.

Details of these and other movements during the year in property,
plant and equipment and investment property of the Group are set
out in note 16 and note 18 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note 25 to
the financial statements.

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company's listed
securities.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

According to the Company's Articles of Association, for the purpose
of determining the amount of profit available for distribution, the
amount shall be deemed to be the lesser of the amount of profit
determined in accordance with the relevant accounting principles
and financial regulations applicable to companies established in
the People’s Republic of China (“PRC GAAP") and the amount
of profit determined in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“"HKFRSs"”). The Company's profit available
for distribution to shareholders as at 31st December, 2007 was the
retained profit of approximately RMB1,275,015,000 determined in
accordance with HKFRSs (2006, approximately RMB1,102,019,000
determined in accordance with PRC GAAP).

The profit of the Company for a financial year shall be applied in
accordance with the following order:

() making up losses;

(i) allocation to statutory reserve fund;

(iii)  if there are preference shares, payment of dividends in respect
of preference shares;

(iv) allocation to discretionary reserve fund; and

(v)  payment of dividends in respect of ordinary shares.

The detailed proportion of distribution in respect of items (ii) to (v)
above for any financial year shall be formulated by the Board in
accordance with the operational conditions of the Company and its
development requirements and shall be submitted to shareholders’
general meeting for approval.
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EEREE DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS
RAFEAMBEEAREBHZ The directors and supervisors of the Company during the year and
RAREERESZRENT - up to the date of this report were:
HITEE Executive directors:
RE(FEFR) WU Yun (Chairman)
=2ER GAO Jianmin
BERRTT Yoshiyuki MIYATAKE
WHT (RZZFEFELEFNA Susumu HOSOI (resigned on 14th June, 2007)
+ /9 H BF )
RE® (RZDFEFELFANA Naotoshi TSUTSUMI (appointed on 14th June, 2007)
+ P HEZ )
215 87 LIU Guangming
B PAN Yong
g o YUE Huagiang
BB ITEE - Independent non-executive directors:
BeE LONG Tao
R/NT SONG Xiaojiang
BE2® XU Bingjin
E2F Supervisors:
BB MIN Qing
0 ZHENG Gang
B4 ZHOU Hong
FTEESTGRERLERINYHE All directors (except Mr. Natoshi TSUTSUMI) had renewed their
KRN _ZEENFAAA+EH service contracts with the Company for a term of three years
BB =FHRBEED - commencing on 17th June, 2006.
RERAEBEARARFR_ZTZT L Mr. Natoshi TSUTSUMI had entered his service contract with the
FRNATHBEELABERFHR Company for a term of two years commencing on 14th June, 2007.
HBaH -
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS (Cont'd)

The Company has received annual confirmation from each of
the independent non-executive Directors as regards to their
independence to the Company and considers that each of the
independent non-executive Directors is independent to the
Company. However, the Company has not yet employed an ordinary
Hong Kong resident as an independent non-executive Director
pursuant to Rule 19A.18(1) of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) (collectively referred to as “Listing Rules”).
The Company is in the process of locating a suitable candidate to
assume such position as soon as possible.

According to the Company’s Articles of Association, the term of
office of the Chairman and other directors shall be three years
renewable upon re-appointment or re-election.

Mr. Susumu HOSOI resigned as executive director of the Company
with effect from the approval of the shareholders at the annual
general meeting of 2007 and Mr. Naotoshi TSUTSUMI was
appointed as executive director in place of Mr. Susumu HOSOI to
hold office from the date of the annual general meeting of 2007 to
the date of the annual general meeting of 2009.

Mr. Yoshiyuki MIYATAKE who is an existing executive director of
the Company has notified the Company that due to reallocation to
other job duties, he will resign as executive director of the Company
with effect from the approval of the shareholders at the forthcoming
annual general meeting and confirmed that he has no disagreement
with the board of directors of the Company and there is no other
matter in relation to his resignation that need to be brought to the
attention of the shareholders of the Company.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS (Cont'd)

A substantial shareholder of the Company, Isuzu Motors Limited,
has nominated Mr. Makoto TANAKA as candidate for election as
an executive director in place of Mr. Yoshiyuki MIYATAKE and
such candidate has given written notice to the Company of his
willingness to accept the nomination.

The Board has proposed that resolutions will be proposed at the
annual general meeting to accept the resignation of Mr. Yoshiyuki
MIYATAKE as an executive director of the Company and to elect Mr.
Makoto TANAKA as an executive director of the Company to hold
office from the date of the annual general meeting to the date of the
annual general meeting for the year of 2009.

In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Law in the
People's Republic of China (the “PRC"), the term of office of
supervisors shall also be three years and renewable upon re-
appointment or re-election. The term of office of each of the
supervisors of the current term will expire at the annual general
meeting of 2009 and shall be eligible for re-election.

None of the directors or supervisors has a service contract with
the Company or its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the
Group within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS IN SHARES

As at 31st December, 2007, none of the directors or supervisors
and chief executives of the Company had any interests or short
positions in any shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations as defined under
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO") as recorded in
the register required to be kept under section 352 of SFO or
as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company, its holding company,
or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries, a party to any
arrangements to enable the directors of the Company to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of,
the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No contract of significance, to which the Company, its holding
company, fellow subsidiaries or subsidiaries was a party and in
which a director or supervisor of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS

The details of directors’ remuneration and highest paid individuals
are set out in note 10 to the consolidated financial statements.
All of five highest individuals of the Company for both years were
directors.
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Class of shares

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

QUALIFIED ACCOUNTANT

The Company has not yet employed a Qualified Accountant
pursuant to Rule 3.24 of the Listing Rules. The Company is in the
process of locating a suitable candidate to assume such position as
soon as possible.

NUMBER OF SHAREHOLDERS AND SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31st December, 2007, there were 145 shareholders recorded
in the register of shareholders of the Company and the shareholders
other than a director, supervisor or chief executive of the Company,
having an interest or short positions in 5% or more of the issued
share capital of the relevant class as recorded in the register of
interests in the shares and short positions required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of SFO were as follows:

Long positions in the shares of the Company:

EEBEERN
ENER
Percentage of {HARAFD L

the relevant Percentage

BRAHEBE &5#% class of of entire

Number of shares held Capacity share capital share capital

12436164031k  EmEAA 100.00% 50.10%
1,243,616,403 shares Beneficial owner

496,453 654k  EmHEEBA 40.08% 20.00%
496,453,654 shares Beneficial owner
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

NUMBER OF SHAREHOLDERS AND SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS (Cont’d)

Other than as disclosed above, the Company has not been notified
of any other relevant interests or short positions in the issued share
capital of the Company as at 31st December 2007.

INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the year, none of the Directors or Supervisors had any
interest in any business which compete or may compete with the
business of the Company.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up
by the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit,
qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are decided by
the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable market
statistics.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group had connected transactions with
Qingling Group and its subsidiaries, and Isuzu and its wholly-owned
subsidiary, Isuzu (China) Holding Co., Ltd. (collectively referred to
as "“Isuzu Group”), and Qingling Isuzu (Chongging) Engine Co.,
Ltd. (“Qingling Isuzu Engine"”), a jointly controlled entity formed
and jointly controlled by the Company and Isuzu. Qingling Group
and Isuzu held approximately 50.10% and approximately 20.00%
of the issued share capital of the Company respectively as at 31st
December, 2007. Details of these transactions are as follows:

(@)  Significant connected transactions with Qingling Group and its
subsidiaries:

At the time of reorganisation as described in note 1, the
Group entered into a service agreement in relation to the
sales of parts and raw materials for the manufacture of
automobile parts by Qingling Group. In addition, the Group
had also entered into a parts supply agreement with Qingling
Group whereby Qingling Group agreed to provide the Group
with certain parts and components produced by Qingling
Group which are required in the production processes of the
Group. On 6th July, 2005, the Group entered into new parts
supply agreements with Qingling Group and its subsidiaries
respectively, which were approved by the Group’'s general
meeting held on 20th September, 2005.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d)

(a)

Significant connected transactions with Qingling Group and its
subsidiaries: (Cont'd)

On 21st August, 2000, the Company entered into a rental
agreement with Qingling Group whereby the Company
agreed to rent certain moulds and tooling equipments to
Qingling Group for a period of one year. The monthly rental
was calculated based on the actual depreciation cost incurred
by the Company. The Company has renewed the rental
agreement in 2006 for another year upon the expiration of the
relevant agreement with the terms of the agreement remained
unchanged.

On 25th January 2006, the Company also entered into a
warehouse leasing agreement with Qingling Group whereby
the Company agreed to lease warehouses from Qingling
Group for a period of two years.

Details of connected transactions with Qingling Group during
the year are set out in note 29(i)(a) to the consolidated financial
statements.
During the vyear, the Company had certain connected
transactions with some of the sino-foreign joint venture
companies which are subsidiaries of Qingling Group. These
companies include EEERBEAR AT, EEERBEE
RAF, EEBRER/ARAR EEERBEER/ERAA,
EEEREHABRAA and EEFEHRERE R QA Details of
these transactions are set out in note 29(i)(b) to 29(i)(g) to the
consolidated financial statements respectively.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d)

(b)

Significant connected transactions with Isuzu Group:

On 28th March, 2006, the Company has entered into an
automobile parts and components supply agreement with
Isuzu whereby Isuzu agreed to provide the Company with
certain automobile parts and components produced by Isuzu
and which are required in the production processes of the
Group. This agreement was approved by the independent
shareholders by poll on 15th June, 2006.

On 28th March, 2006, the Company has also entered into an
accessory sets and other automobile parts and components
supply agreement with Isuzu whereby the Company agreed to
provide Isuzu with certain accessory sets and other automobile
parts and components produced by the Company and which
are required in the production processes of Isuzu Group. This
agreement was approved by the independent shareholders by
poll on 15th June, 2006.

During the vyear, the Company had certain connected
transactions with Isuzu of royalty fee for the transfer of
technology and provision of technical know-how and the
permission to use the trademark of Isuzu and the emblem by
Isuzu to the Company for the production and in the sales of
100P — N/R series light vehicles, 140 TF/UC Series vehicles,
and F Series Chassis and related parts and components.

Details of connected transactions with Isuzu Group during
the year are set out in note 29(ii) to the consolidated financial
statements.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d)

(c)

Significant connected transactions with Qingling Isuzu Engine:

Since November 2007, connected transactions have been
carried out between the Company and the Qingling Isuzu
Engine in respect of (i) the performed equipment transfer
for the delivery of the transferred equipments to Qingling
Isuzu Engine; (i) the ongoing supply transactions namely
the supply of parts of engines and raw materials to and the
purchase of engines and their parts from Qingling Isuzu
Engine, (i) the ongoing consolidated services namely the
provision of consolidated services to Qingling Isuzu Engine,
(iv) the ongoing equipment lease namely the rental of leased
equipment to Qingling Isuzu Engine, and (v) the ongoing
factory lease namely the lease of the leased land and factory
premises to Qingling Isuzu Engine.

On 21st January, 2008, the Company entered into following
agreements with Qingling Isuzu Engine: (1) the Equipment
Transfer Agreement; (2) the Supply Agreement; (3) the
Consolidated Services Agreement; (4) the Equipment Lease
Agreement; and (5) the Factory Lease Agreement. All these
agreements were approved by the independent shareholders
by poll on 31st March, 2008.

Details of connected transactions with Qingling Isuzu Engine
during the year are set out in note 29(iii) to the consolidated
financial statements.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d)

The independent non-executive directors confirm that the
transactions have been entered into by the Company in the ordinary
course of its business, on normal commercial terms or on terms
no less favorable than terms available to or from independent
third parties, and in accordance with the terms of the agreement
governing such transactions that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The Company has received from the auditors a letter which
regarding the procedure they performed and the factual findings
about the above transactions except for section (c) above are that:

1. have received the approval of the Board;

2. have been entered into accordance with the pricing policies of
the Company;

3. have been entered into in accordance with the relevant
agreements governing the transactions; and

4.  have not exceeded the relevant annual caps.

The Company has received from the auditors a letter which
regarding the procedure they performed and the factual findings
about the above transactions (c) is that:

1. have received the approval of the Board,;

2. have been entered into accordance with the pricing policies of
the Company;

3. have been entered into in accordance with the relevant
agreements governing the transactions; and

4. have not exceeded the cap disclosed in the relevant
announcement dated 28th January 2008 and the transaction
amounts of such continuing connected transactions
corresponded with those financial figures in the Group's
accounting books and records.
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FIVE LARGEST SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

For the year ended 31st December, 2007, the five largest suppliers
accounted for 53% of the total purchases of the Group. The largest
supplier accounted for 31% of the total purchases. Two subsidiaries
of Qingling Group and a Japanese trading company, through which
Isuzu channels its supply of parts and components to the Group,
are included in the five largest suppliers of the Group. Details of
transactions with Qingling Group and its subsidiaries and with
Isuzu Group are set out in the section “Connected Transactions”
above. Other than disclosed above, the Company’s directors and
supervisors, their associates or any shareholders (which to the
knowledge of the directors own more than 5% of the Company's
share capital), did not have any interests in the Group's five largest
suppliers for the year ended 31st December, 2007.

For the year ended 31st December, 2007, the aggregate sales
attributable to the Group’s five largest customers were less than
24% of the Group's total sales.

CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES, OPTIONS, WARRANTS OR
SIMILAR RIGHTS

The Company and its subsidiaries did not issue or grant any
convertible securities, options, warrants or similar rights during the
year.

There were no outstanding or conversion of convertible securities,
options, warrants or similar rights issued or granted by the Company
or its subsidiaries and jointly controlled entity during the year.

DESIGNATED DEPOSITS

As at 31st December, 2007, the Group did not hold any designated
deposits or any time deposits that were overdue but could not be
collected upon maturity.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S
LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, none of the Company or its subsidiaries and a
jointly controlled entity had purchased, redeemed or sold any of the
Company'’s listed securities during the year.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31st December, 2007, the Group has 3,030 employees. During
the year, no material change is noted for the number of employees
nor their remuneration policy. The Group actively provides various
training to its staff of all levels.

STAFF RETIREMENT SCHEME

Details of the Group's staff retirement benefits scheme are set out
in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules. Having made specific enquires of all
Directors and Supervisors, the Company confirms that all Directors
and Supervisors have complied with the requirements of the Model
Code during the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company's
Articles of Association.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Except for the deviations set out in the “corporate governance
report”, the Company has complied with the code provisions of the
Code of Corporate Governance Practices as set out in Appendix 14
to the Listing Rules during the year.

Further information on the Company’'s corporate governance
practices is set out in the “corporate governance report” from
pages 31 to 38.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of its Directors, as at the date of this
annual report, there is sufficient public float, as not less than 25% of
the Company’s issued shares are held by the public.

REVIEW OF ACCOUNTS

The audit committee has reviewed with the management and
auditors of the Company the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group and discussed auditing, internal controls
and financial reporting matters including the review of the
audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st
December, 2007.

AUDITORS

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting to re-
appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu CPA Ltd. and Messrs.
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the Company.

By order of the Board

WU Yun
Chairman

Chongging, 22nd April, 2008



D
e
m
B
i
I

ARABENRBRFRBTENDLE
ER URSHBRRHNERE -
ARREREERMBERNEAER
BER UTHRRZEFER
BYREHRTHEEX -

B Tt e R BETT RSN ARRR
“EERLFEEET LT RK
14 RERE MRS RI([57RI])
fER 3L

SRIZFRIGXEI2REESS
TEREFRREAFAE - AR
AEERATEERAERINERE
EZFEH UBRELEERFH =
ZETLERRAFARE WAL
REIBI - B WEEB-—NHZE
FE ZEATEEZARALE
HEARR ZZEZ+FERRAF
RE -BREBEFKBERL EFRR
EEEHERAEEFEARRARRE
FAEXE -

BB ZMBHEOED - A
EEBLTHNEARRYEARE
—ZBRARAERRRBULFATE
E-BIARERAL  ARAE
AEB—RBEHAE

RIBH X PTEMOIRSE - FAEHE
EELTHORA - BHFEBF L
BEREFMSEQANMEE
B #HARNE -HMERGARE
RAzEAE  BRAREHLL
ARBEAKI —BEHEHA

31

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Company endeavours to maintain a high standard of corporate
governance and to increase transparency to its shareholders. The
Company has adopted sound governance and disclosure practices,
and is committed to continuously improve those practices and
cultivate an ethical corporate culture.

Except for the deviations specified below, the Company has
complied with the code provisions of the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (the “Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of the
Listing Rules in the year 2007.

Code Provision E.1.2 of the Code stipulates that the Chairman of
the Board should attend annual general meetings. Owing to an
important commitment overseas, the chairman of the board of the
Company, Mr. WU Yun, has given an apology for not presiding the
2007 Annual General Meeting, Hence, he has signed an appointing
letter, appointing Mr. LIU Guangming, an executive Director to
attend the 2007 Annual General Meeting. The Chairman of the
Board, Mr. WU Yun, should attend the Annual General Meeting of
the Company unless any exceptional circumstances occur.

According to regulations promulgated by the Stock Exchange, any
PRC-based company listed in Hong Kong shall engage one Hong
Kong resident to act as an independent non-executive director.
However, as at the date of this report, the Company has not
identified a suitable candidate.

According to the regulations promulgated by the Stock Exchange,
any company listed in Hong Kong shall engage a qualified
accountant for the financial management of the Company. The
Company is currently using its best endeavour in identifying a
suitable candidate, however, as at the date of this report, the
Company has not identified a suitable candidate.
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Below are the corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company in 2007.

THE BOARD

The Board, led by the Chairman, is responsible for the approval
and monitoring of the Company’s overall strategies and policies,
approval of annual budgets and business plans, evaluation of the
performance of the Company, and oversight of the work of the
management.

The day-to-day operations of the Group are delegated to the
management. The management team must together regularly
to review and discuss with executive directors on day-to-day
operations issues, financial and operating performance as well as to
monitor and ensure the management in carrying out the directions
and strategies set by the Board correctly and properly.

The Board comprises ten Directors, out of which seven are
executive Directors (including the Chairman and the General
Manager) and three are independent non-executive Directors. For
name list and profile of the members of the Board, please refer to
the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors, Supervisors
and Senior Management”. In accordance with the requirements of
the Listing Rules, an independent non-executive director must be
confirmed by the Board to have no any direct or indirect material
relationship with the Company before being considered to be
independent. The Company has received written confirmation from
each independent non-executive Director of his independence and
considered all independent non-executive Directors are independent
to the Company. There is no financial, business, family or other
material/related relationship existing among the Directors.

The Board should meet regularly, and board meeting should be
held at least four times a year. The Board held six meetings in 2007
and three meetings on 22 April 2008. Attendance rate of directors
(including attendance by representatives) is 100%.
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The Board has adopted the Model Code as set out in appendix 10
of the Listing Rules as the Company’s code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by Directors and Supervisors. After making
specific enquiries with all Directors and Supervisors, the Company
confirmed that the Directors and Supervisors have complied with
the required standard set out in the Model Code during 2007.

CHAIRMAN AND GENERAL MANAGER

Mr. WU Yun and Mr. Makoto TANAKA (who was appointed on 22
April 2008 in place of Mr. Yoshiyuki MIYATAKE) holds the positions
of Chairman of the Board and General Manager, which are two
clearly separate positions, respectively.

The Chairman is responsible for leading, and overseeing the
operations of the Board, effectively planning the Board meetings
and ensuring the Board is acting in the best interests of the
Company. The Chairman shall proactively encourage Directors to
fully participate in the Board’s affairs and make contribution to the
functions. The Board, under the Chairman’s leadership, has adopted
good corporate governance practices and procedures and has taken
appropriate steps to maintain effective communication with the
shareholders.

The General Manager is responsible for managing the business
of the Company, as well as formulating and implementing the
Company’s policies and is answerable to the Board in relation
to the overall operation of the Company. The General Manager
works in close association with the other executive Directors and
the administrative team of each core business division, ensuring
the funding requirements of the business of the Company are
sufficiently met and at the same time closely monitor the operation
and financial results of the Company according to business plans
and budgets, and advise the Board on matters in relation to the
Company’s development. The General Manager is required to keep
close communication with the Chairman and all other Directors
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to keep them fully informed of all substantive matters relating to
the Company’s business development, and is also responsible for
building and maintaining a highly efficient administrative support
team to support him to discharge the assigned duties in this
position.

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

Article 95 of the Company’s Articles of Association stipulates that
directors shall be elected at the shareholders’ general meeting for
a term of three years. Upon expiry of the term, a director shall be
eligible for re-election. Accordingly, all Directors are appointed for a
specific term.

The Company does not have a nomination committee. The Board
shall have the collective responsibility to consider and assess the
candidates for directorships based on their characters, qualifications
and experience appropriate for the Group’'s businesses, and
nominate candidates for directorships accordingly. Candidates
for directorships are subject to election by shareholders at
shareholders’ general meeting.

The current term of office of all the directors who retired were re-
elected in the annual general meeting for the year of 2006 shall not
expire till the annual general meeting for the year of 2009.

For 2007, a substantial shareholder, Isuzu nominated Mr. Naotoshi
TSUTSUMI as a candidate to fill the vacancy following the
resignation of an executive director. The Board held a meeting
on 19 April 2007 to consider and assess such candidate for
directorship and attendance rate of directors (including attendance
by representatives) is 100%. The Board proposed a resolution
at the annual general meeting for the year of 2007 to elect Mr.
Naotoshi TSUTSUMI as executive director which was approved by
the shareholders. Mr. Naotoshi TSUTSUMI shall hold office from the
date of the annual general meeting for the year of 2007 to the date
of the annual general meeting for the year of 2009.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established its Remuneration Committee on 20
April  2006. The Remuneration Committee comprises three
independent non-executive Directors (namely Mr. LONG Tao, Mr.
SONG Xiaojiang and Mr. XU Bingjin) and one executive Director
(namely, Mr. LIU Guangming). Mr. Liu Guangming serves as the
chairman of the Remuneration Committee. Responsibilities of the
Remuneration Committee were set based on the recommendations
set out in the Code issued by the Stock Exchange, the main points
are summarised as follow: to recommend the Board in respect of
the remuneration policies for the directors and senior management
of the Company; to recommend the Board in respect of the
remuneration policies for the independent non-executive Directors;
to determine the specific remunerations for all executive Directors
and senior management members, including non-monetary benefits,
pension and compensation payment; to ensure that none of the
Directors or any of their respective associates involve in the
determination of their own remuneration; other recommended
duties set out in various provisions of the Code.

The Remuneration Committee had 2 meetings in 2007. Attendance
rate of the members of the Remuneration Committee is 100%.

SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

The Supervisory Committee comprises three members, two of
whom are representatives of the shareholders and one of whom
is the representative of the staff and workers. During 2007,
the Supervisors of the Company have exercised their right of
supervision in accordance with the laws and protected the legal
interests of the shareholders, the Company and the employees. The
details of the work of the Supervisory Committee are set out in the
Supervisory Committee’s Report in this annual report.

The Supervisory Committee held 2 meetings in 2007. Attendance
rate of the supervisors is 100%.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee with specific
terms of reference in accordance with the Listing Rules. The
Audit Committee comprises three independent non-executive
Directors, who possess appropriate business and financial skills and
experience to understand financial statements. The Committee is
chaired by Song Xiaojiang and other members are LONG Tao and XU
Bingjin.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee include the duties
to recommend the engagement and replacement of external
audit firms, oversee the Company’s internal auditing systems and
implementation, verify the Company's financial information and
disclosure, examine the Company’s internal control systems, and
take charge and act as a communication channel between internal
and external auditors.

The Audit Committee met twice in 2007 to review the final results
for 2006 and the 2007 interim report. Attendance rate of the
members of the Audit Committee is 100%.

EXTERNAL AUDITOR

The external auditors currently appointed by the Company are
Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu CPA Ltd. and Messrs. Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu as its PRC and international auditors respectively.
In order to maintain their independence, these accountants do
not take on non-audit work. The work the external auditors are
engaged to perform must produce measurable efficiency and added-
value to the Company and should not cause adverse effect on the
independence or independent standing of their audit function. The
amount of the remunerations of the auditors is disclosed in the
financial statements.
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INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has the ultimate responsibility in overseeing the
operation of all business units under the Company’s management. It
shall appoint suitable qualified personnel to serve on the boards of
all subsidiaries and associated companies operating in key business
areas, attending their board meetings to oversee the operations
of these companies. The management in each business division is
accountable for the operations and performance of the business
within its area of responsibility.

The Company’s management has implemented a system of internal
control to provide reasonable assurance that the Group's assets are
safeguarded, proper accounting records are maintained, applicable
laws and regulations are complied with, reliable financial information
are provided for the Company’'s management for publication
purposes and investment and business risks affecting the Group are
identified and properly managed.

The Directors of the Company review the effectiveness of the
internal control system of itself and its subsidiaries at least once
every year. The scope of a review includes financial control,
operation control, compliance control and risks management
functions. As of 22 April 2008, the Board has completed the
aforementioned review for 2007 and the Board is of the view that
the Company’s internal control system can properly and effectively
protect the investments of the shareholders and the assets of the
Group.

DIRECTOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Under the assistance of the accounting department, the Board is
responsible for preparing the financial statements for each financial
year and ensuring that, in preparing such financial statements,
appropriate accounting policies are adopted and applied and the
PRC accounting standards and systems and International Financial
Reporting Standards are observed, to give a true and fair view of
the financial position and operating results of the Company. The
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statement of the auditors about their responsibilities on the Group's
financial statements is set out in the Independent Auditor’'s Report
on pages 41 to 43.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

After announcement of the Company’s interim and annual financial
results, the Company has proactively arranged for briefing meetings
for people from the investment community at regular intervals,
using the opportunity to promote investor relations and two-way
communication. The Company, through the investor relations
manager, responds to the information requests and inquiries
by people from the investment community. The Company also
publishes information such as the Company's announcements and
circulars on its website in a timely manner under the requirements
of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

The Company encourages shareholders to attend the shareholders’
annual general meeting in which the Chairman and Directors will
be on hand to answer questions by shareholders on the Company’s
business. The Company distributes annual and interim report to the
shareholders in a timely manner for their inspection.

In 2008, the Company will also continue to dedicate efforts into
enhancing the standard of its corporate governance according to the
ongoing regulatory changes, development trend of the Company,
and feedback opinions from shareholders, ensuring a stable and
healthy growth for the Company while adding value to shareholders.

By Order of the Board
WU Nianqing
Company Secretary
Chongging, PRC

22 April 2008



B BAE RS

Deloitte.
=g

BERAEROERIARR

(R EARAMBEFEMAKZA SR
SIEaERNDABRAA)

AZBEITE TR ERINENE
REVZEERAERNDBERA
A([EAR ) RENRE QR (5HE
RIESHEDOEAMBHEHRE It
BEBRREBER_-_ZTTLF+=
A=t HNEAEEREBERE
BEZALFENGEEBaR -
RARaEPRNGEARERE
RUARETZGHABRRMERE
fl P E AR A -

EENGeMBBRAEARENE
(73

BERAZERZRARERETAES
SR AERMNEBMERELE
AR FECRREPDH R E R K
REREEMR T ®E%EE
BUBHE - ERETEERS
EkEEERELEEMAF
b 5 4R & B 7% #R R AR B A9 0 AR
T AEEEMBERRIEFRE
B RFFRERME RN E A
R REREREENG
BR  ARBEBERTEHEER
SaHhET -

89

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF QINGLING MOTORS CO., LTD.

(a Sino-foreign joint venture joint stock limited company established
in the People’s Republic of China with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Qingling
Motors Co., Ltd (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 42 to 113 which
comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at 31st December 2007,
and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement
for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory notes.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated financial
statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate
accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are
reasonable in the circumstances.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit
in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as
to whether the consolidated financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s presentation and
true and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’'s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31st December
2007 and of the Group's profit and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
22nd April, 2008



mEe B &K CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

EHZ2007F12A8318 1L EE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2007
2007 2006
Kzt AREFIT AREFIT
NOTES RMB'000 RMB'000
Yoz Revenue 6,7 3,756,513 3,342,442
i B R Cost of sales (3,088,955) (2,856,020)
E7 Gross profit 667,558 486,422
He A Other income 95,692 49,362
Hin s Other expenses (6,344) —
HERDHKA Selling and distribution costs (431,774) (339,150
ERER Administrative expenses (134,220) (97,426)
BITS AR Finance costs 8 — (9,467)
BR % A& Al Profit before tax 9 190,912 89,741
FTS 8 i Income tax expense 11 (19,798) (10,273)
FER A Profit for the year 171,114 79,468
B Attributable to:
NG T Equity holders of the Company 159,236 77,688
DR R R Minority interests 11,878 1,780
171,114 79,468
2 Dividend 14 49,645 49,645
BRERZF Basic earnings per share 15 RMBO0.06 RMBO0.03
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
AT 31ST DECEMBER, 2007

2007 2006
Mzt AREFT AREFT
NOTES RMB’000 RMB'000
ERBEE Non-current assets
ME  BE kB Property, plant and equipment 16 2,658,626 3,264,722
Bt e Prepaid lease payments 17 42,018 43,207
REME Investment properties 18 65,350 —
BVEAE Intangible assets 19 53,823 67,212
ELERBEE Deferred tax assets 27 8,093 =
2,827,910 3,375,141
RBEE Current assets
EE Inventories 21 653,277 960,408
P Ui B R e A PR M RO Trade and other receivables 22 325,235 42,227
EURE Bills receivables 23 905,934 728,148
B LS Prepaid lease payments 17 1,189 1,189
FEHABEB=EAZ Bank deposits with original maturity
BROER more than three months 24 2,013,431 996,435
RITEBRERRE Bank balances and cash 28 1,681,450 1,814,530
5,480,516 4,542,937
REBER Current liabilities
EREN  REIAMEMNERR Trade, bills and other payables 26 1,166,564 974,064
e B8 Tax payable 21,353 6,523
1,187,917 980,587
”'ﬁébéé’%ﬁ Net current assets 4,292,599 3,562,350
RAERRDRAE Total assets less current liabilities 7,120,509 6,937,491
ERR it Capital and reserves
B A Share capital 25 2,482,268 2,482,268
@ Reserves 4,345,359 4,235,768
NGNS Equity attributable to equity holders of
FEfh T 2 the Company 6,827,627 6,718,036
LEBRRER Minority interests 292,882 219,455
EHER Total equity 7,120,509 6,937,491

FRAZFIBRZEAMBRREN =
ETLEMA-T-REEFEHRERR
BRI UM TIESHERRE

The consolidated financial statements on pages 42 to 113 were approved and
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 22nd April, 2008 and are signed on
its behalf by:

AXPE=
& BES

LIU Guangming DIRECTOR
PAN Yong DIRECTOR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2007

DERREE
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
EX iELARE AELEE ARLES HBRR
BE  RAEE A®%&  Statutory  StatutoryDiscretionary  REERI i 5
Share Share Capital surplus public surplus  Retained Nt Minority @it
capital  premium reserve reserve fund welfare fund reserve fund profits ~ Sub-total interests Total
NEEFT ANREFT AREFT ARETT AREFT AEEFT ARETT AREFr AEEFT AREFT
RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB000  AMB000  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000
Wita M1  MEZ MED
(note a) (note 12) (note 12) (note 13)
® ENE—A—H At 1st January, 2006 2,482,268 1,764,905 572,239 354,858 354,269 1,765 1,159,687 6,689,991 178483 6,868,474
EERFREAED Profit for the year and
F2ON L total recognised income
for the year — — — — — — 77,688 77,688 1,780 79,468
Appropriation for the year
— the Company — — — 6,790 — — (6,790) - - —
— a subsidiary — — — 24 — 72 (96) = = =
Unclaimed H shares
dividend of prior year — - — — — — 2 2 — 2
2005 dividend paid = = = = = = (49,645) (49,645) = (49,645)
Capital injection in
a subsidiary — — — — — — — — 39,192 39,192
Transfer (note b) — — — 354,269 (354,269) — — — — —
At 31st December, 2006 2,482,268 1,764,905 572,239 715,941 = 1,837 1,180,846 6,718,036 219,455 6,937,491
Profit for the year and
total recognised income
for the year = = = = = = 159,236 159,236 11,878 171,114
EENR Appropriation for the year
B VNG| — the Company - - - 14,784 — — (14,784) — — —
——EHBAR — a subsidiary — — — 186 — 452 (638) = = =
FH-ZEAERE 2006 dividend paid - - - - - — (49645 (49,645) —  [49,645)
R-BHNBARTE Capital injection in
a subsidiary - - - — - — — — 61,549 61,549

R-EE+E+-F=+-H At 31st December, 2007 2,482,268 1,764,905 572,239 730911 = 2289 1275015 6,827,627 292,882 7,120,509

Hiat - Note:

(a) BARARAFELIE —SHARK (a) The capital reserve represents an amount of approximately RMB572,206,000
572,206,000 L (ZEESE : AR (2006: RMB572,206,000) which represents the excess of the value of the net
#572,206,0007T ) 28 - IRABE assets immediately before the establishment of the Company injected into the
I B E RSB AR AT EA AR Company by Qingling Group and Qingling as part of the reorganisation (note 1)
(RSN BEEREERELEA which was approved by the State Administration of State-owned Assets, over
AN T H B E R E R AR T KT the nominal value of the 1,500,000,000 shares issued upon establishment of the
B Fi7 %% 47 1,500,000,000 % &9 & {& A Company of RMB1,500,000,000.

E#1,500,000,0007C 2 i 35 ©
(b) BETEARLNMB AT ESETHH (b) In accordance with the revised PRC Company Law, the unutilised statutory

BE S DNFRIEANEERERAEETRD public welfare fund was transferred to statutory surplus reserve fund in 2006.
S EBATTAFAEELAEE R

o

i Bk
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2007

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax
Adjustments for:
Interest income
Finance costs
Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment
Amortisation of intangible assets
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments
Depreciation of investment properties
Allowance (Write back) for obsolete
inventories — net
Write back for bad and
doubtful debts
Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Operating cash flows before
movements in working capital
Decrease in inventories
Decrease in trade and
other receivables
Increase in bills receivables
Increase in trade, bills and
other payables

Cash generated from operation
Income taxes paid

NET CASH FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES

2007 2006
ARBETT  ARETT
RMB000 RMB000
190,912 89,741
(63,019) (34,449
= 9,467
359,034 256,730
13,389 15,259
1,189 1,189
1,029 =
31,778 (1,504)
— (8,618)

1,930 35
536,242 327,850
275,353 804,748
(63,795) 274,746
(177,786) (222,943)
194,193 238,226
764,207 1,422,627
(13,061) (4,320)
751,146 1,418,307
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2007

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Increase in fixed deposit with banks

Purchase of property, plant and
equipment

Interest received

Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING
ACTIVITIES

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Capital injection from minority
shareholder

New bank loans raised

Unclaimed H shares dividend of
prior year

Dividends paid

Repayment of bank loans

Interest paid

NET CASH GENERATED BY (USED IN)

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH

AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT 1ST JANUARY

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

AT 31ST DECEMBER, REPRESENTING

BANK BALANCES AND CASH

2007 2006
ABKTT  ARETT
RMB000 RMB000
(1,016,996) (326,175)
(28,080) (27,428)
38,759 32,520
10,187 25
(996,130) (321,058)
61,549 39,192

= 145,594

— 2
(49,645) (49,645)
= (743,729)
— (12,162)
11,904 (620,748)
(233,080) 476,501
1,814,630 1,338,029
1,681,450 1,814,530
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2007

1. GENERAL

The Company was registered in 1 Xiexing Cun, Zhong Liang Shan,
Jiu Long Po District, Chongging, PRC and engaged in the production
and sale of Isuzu light-duty trucks, multi-purposes vehicles, pick-
up trucks, heavy-duty trucks, other vehicles and automobile parts
and accessories. The principal activities of its subsidiaries and joint
controlled entity are set out in notes 33 and 20.

The Company was reorganised into a Sino-foreign joint venture
joint stock limited company on 18th May, 1994 as part of a
reorganisation of a state-owned enterprise Bi%/AEBE(EB)ERA
Al (“Qingling Group”), and E#R/TEAR AR (“Qingling”), a Sino-
foreign equity joint venture company. Prior to the reorganisation,
Qingling Group and Qingling separately owned the operations and
the relevant assets and liabilities relating to various automobile
manufacturing processes. Pursuant to the reorganisation, certain
of the operations and the relevant assets and liabilities of Qingling
Group and other assets of the remaining shareholders of Qingling
were reorganised and injected into Qingling which was reorganised
and converted into a Sino-foreign joint venture joint stock limited
company (the "Reorganisation”). Qingling Group becomes the parent
and ultimate holding company of the Company subsequent to the
Reorganisation.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi
("RMB") which is also the functional currency of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2007

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first time, the
following new standard, amendment and interpretations (“new
HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA"), which are effective for the Group’s
financial year beginning 1 January 2007.

HKAS 1 (Amendment) Capital Disclosures

HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures

HK (IFRIC)-Int 7 Applying the Restatement Approach
under HKAS 29 Financial Reporting in
Hyperinflationary Economies

HK (IFRIC)-Int 8 Scope of HKFRS 2

HK (IFRIC)-Int 9 Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives

HK (IFRIC)-Int 10 Interim Financial Reporting and

Impairment

The adoption of the new HKFRSs had no material effect on how
the results and financial position for the current or prior accounting
periods have been prepared and presented. Accordingly, no prior
period adjustment has been required.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2007

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSS"”)
(Cont'd)

The Group has applied the disclosure requirements under HKAS
1 (Amendment) and HKFRS 7 retrospectively. Certain information
presented in prior year under the requirements of HKAS 32 has
been removed and the relevant comparative information based on
the requirements of HKAS 1 (Amendment) and HKFRS 7 has been
presented for the first time in the current year.

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
standards or interpretations that have been issued but are not yet
effective.

HKAS 1 (Revised) Presentation of Financial Statements'’

HKAS 23 (Revised) Borrowing Costs'

HKAS 27 (Revised) Consolidated and Separate Financial

Statements?

HKFRS 2 (Amendment) Vesting Conditions and Cancellations’

HKFRS 3 (Revised) Business Combinations?

HKFRS 8 Operating Segments'’

HK(IFRIC)-Int 11 HKFRS 2: Group and Treasury Share

Transactions®
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2007

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSS")

(Cont'd)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 12 Service Concession Arranagements*

HK(IFRIC)-Int 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes®

HK(IFRIC)-Int 14 HKAS 19 — The Limit on a Defined
Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding
Requirements and their Interaction*

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 March 2007

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2008

5) Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2008

The adoption of HKFRS 3 (revised) may affect the accounting for
business combination for which the acquisition date is on or after
the beginning of the first annual reporting period beginning on or
after 1 July 2009. HKAS 27 (revised) will affect the accounting
treatment for changes in a parent's ownership interest in a
subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control, which will be
accounted for as equity transactions. Besides, the directors have
commenced considering the potential impact of HKRFS 8, but it is
not yet in a position to determine whether HKFRS 8 would have a
significant impact on the presentation of segment information.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2007

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSS"”)
(Cont'd)

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of
the other new or revised standards and interpretations will have
no material impact on the results and the financial position of the
Group.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by
the HKICPA.

In addition, the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and by the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities (including special purpose
entities) controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries). Control is
achieved where the Company has the power to govern the financial
and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its
activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the
year are included in the consolidated income statement from the
effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal,
as appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2007

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Basis of consolidation (Cont’d)

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with those
used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are
eliminated on consolidation.

Minority interests in the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries
are presented separately from the Group's equity therein. Minority
interests in the net assets consist of the amount of those interests
at the date of the original business combination and the minority’s
share of changes in equity since the date of the combination.
Losses applicable to the minority in excess of the minority’s interest
in the subsidiary’s equity are allocated against the interests of the
Group except to the extent that the minority has a binding obligation
and is able to make an additional investment to cover the losses.

Jointly controlled entities

A joint venture is a contractual arrangement whereby the Group
and other parties undertake an economic activity which is subject
to joint control, which is when the strategic financial and operating
policy decisions relating to the activities require the unanimous
consent of the parties sharing control.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2007

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Jointly controlled entities (Cont’d)

Joint venture arrangements which involve the establishment of a
separate entity in which each venturer has an interest are referred
to as jointly controlled entities. The Group recognises its interests
in jointly controlled entities using the proportionate consolidation
method. The Group's share of the income, expenses, assets and
liabilities of jointly controlled entities, other than the transactions
and balances between the Group and jointly controlled entities,
are combined with the Group’s similar items in the consolidated
financial statements on a line-by-line basis. Transactions and
balances between the Group and the jointly controlled entities
are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the jointly
controlled entities.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods sold in
the normal course of business, net of discounts and sales related
tax.

Sales of goods are recognised when goods are delivered and title
has passed.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time basis,
by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts
the estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the
financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount.

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are recognised as and included in finance costs

in the consolidated income statement in the period in which they
are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2007

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for use in
the production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative
purposes are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of property,
plant and equipment other than construction in progress over their
estimated useful lives after taking into account of their estimated
residual values, using the straight line method.

Specialised production facilities and moulds which can be identified
in relation to specific production processes are depreciated by
reference to the expected production volume of these facilities and
moulds.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the assets (calculated as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item) is
included in the consolidated income statement in the year in which
the item is derecognised.

Construction in progress includes property, plant and equipment
in the course of construction for production or for its own use
purposes. Construction in progress is carried at cost less any
recognised impairment loss. Construction in progress is classified
to the appropriate category of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets,
on the same basis as other property assets, commences when the
assets are ready for their intended use.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2007

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Property, plant and equipment (Cont'd)

An owned-occupied property is transferred to investment property
when it is evidenced by the end of owner occupation at the carrying
amount of the property transferred on the date of transfer.

No depreciation is provided in respect of construction in progress.

Land use right

The prepayments made on acquiring land use rights represent
prepaid lease payments and are accounted for as an operating lease.
The prepaid lease payment is amortised on a straight-line basis over
the lease term, or when there is impairment, the impairment is
recognised in the consolidated income statement.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals.

On initial recognition, investment properties are measured at
cost, including any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent
to initial recognition, investment properties are stated at cost
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Depreciation is charged so as to write off the
cost of investment properties using the straight-line method.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2007

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Leasing

Leases are classified as finances lease whenever the terms of lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the
lessee. All other than leases are classified as operating lease.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in the
consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis over the
term of the relevant lease.

The Group as lessee

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to profit or loss
on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Benefits
received and receivable as an incentive to enter into an operating
lease are recognised as a reduction of rental expenses over the
lease term on a straight-line basis.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of the individual entities,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that
entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the respective functional
currency (i.e. the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on
the dates of the transactions. At each balance sheet date, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
rates prevailing on the balance sheet date. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the translation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they arise.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2007

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Government grants

Government grants are recognised as income over the periods
necessary to match them with the related costs.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are
charged as an expense when employees have rendered service
entitling them to the contributions.

Payments made to state-managed retirement benefit schemes are
dealt with as payments to defined contribution plans where the
Group's obligations under the plans are equivalent to those arising in
a defined contribution retirement benefit plan.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable
and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the consolidated
income statement because it excludes items of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years, and it further excludes
income statement items that are never taxable and deductible. The
Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2007

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
Taxation (Cont’d)

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit, and are accounted for using the
balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred
tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from
the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of other
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each
balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or
part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply
in the period when the liability is settled or the asset is realised.
Deferred tax is charged or credited to profit or loss, except when it
relates to items charged or credited directly to equity, in which case
the deferred tax is also dealt with in equity.

Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets acquired separately and with finite useful lives are
carried at costs less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible assets with finite
useful lives is provided on a straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2007

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Intangible assets (Cont’d)

Intangible assets acquired separately (Cont'd)

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset
are measured at the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the
consolidated income statement when the asset is derecognised.

Research and development costs

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in
the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from development
expenditure is recognised only if it is anticipated that the
development costs incurred on a clearly-defined project will
be recovered through future commercial activity. The resultant
asset is amortised on a straight-line basis over its useful life, and
carried at cost less subsequent accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated intangible
asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred from the date when
the intangible asset first meets the recognition criteria. Where
no internally generated intangible asset can be recognised,
development expenditure is charged to profit or loss in the period in
which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated intangible
asset is reported at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses, on the same basis as intangible
assets acquired separately.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2007

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than
its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced
to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an
expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income
immediately.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is calculated using the weighted average method.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2007

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the
balance sheet when a group entity becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and
financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets
and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are mainly loans and receivables. All
regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised
and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace. The accounting policies adopted in
respect of financial assets are set out below.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest income
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including
all fees on points paid or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2007

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial assets (Cont‘d)

Effective interest method (Cont'd)

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial recognition,
loans and receivables (including trade and other receivables, bill
receivables, bank deposits and bank balances and cash) are carried
at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any
identified impairment losses. (see accounting policy on impairment
loss on financial assets below)

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for
indicators of impairment at each balance sheet date. Financial
assets are impaired where there is objective evidence that, as
a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of
the financial assets have been impacted. The objective evidence of
impairment could include:

° significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

° default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy
or financial re-organisation.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2007

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial assets (Cont’d)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont’d)

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade receivables,
assets that are assessed not to be impaired individually are
subsequently assessed for impairment on a collective basis.
Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables
could include the Group's past experience of collecting payments,
an increase in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past
the average credit period, observable changes in national or local
economic conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an impairment loss
is recognised in profit or loss when there is objective evidence that
the asset is impaired, and is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the original effective interest rate.
If, in a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment losses was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to
the extent that the carrying amount of the asset at the date the
impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost
would have been had the impairment not been recognised.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception
of trade receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through
the use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of
the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. When a trade
and other receivables is considered uncollectible, it is written off
against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited to profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2007

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
Financial instruments (Cont’d)
Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Group
are classified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the group after deducting all of its liabilities.
The Group’s financial liabilities are mainly trade bills and other
payables.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments through
the expected life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2007

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial assets (Cont’d)

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities (including trade, bills and other payables)
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash
flows from the assets expire or, the financial assets are transferred
and the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the financial assets. On derecognition of a financial
asset, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable is recognised in
profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified
in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised
in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2007

4. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged
from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which includes
trade, bills and other payables, and equity attributable to equity
holders of the Company, comprising issued share capital, and
reserves, and retained profits.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure from time
to time. As part of this review, the directors consider the cost of
capital and the risks associates with each class of capital. Based on
recommendations of the directors, the Group will balance its overall
capital structure through the payment of dividends, new share
issues as well as the issue of new debt and so on.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or process during
the year.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2007

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(a) Categories of financial instruments
2007 2006
ARETFLT AREFT

RMB'000 RMB'000

Financial assets
Loan and receivables

Trade receivables 82,102 23,755
Other receivables 233,742 12,340
Bill receivables 905,934 728,148
Bank deposits with original maturity more

than three months 2,013,431 996,435
Bank balances and cash 1,581,450 1,814,530

4,816,659 3,575,208

Financial liabilities

Amortised costs
Trade and bills payables 809,665 670,492
Other payables 213,953 210,680

1,023,618 881,172

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade and other
receivables, bill receivables, bank deposits, bank balances and cash
and trade, bills payables and other payables. Details of the financial
instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated
with these financial instruments include market risk, interest rate
risk and currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on
how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective manner.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2007

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (Cont’d)

Market risk

The Group’s activities expose it primarily to the market risks
of changes in interest rate risk and currency risk. Market risk
exposures are further measured by sensitivity analysis. There has
been no change to the Group’s exposure to market risks or the
manner in which it manages and measures the risk. The Group's
market risk exposure is minimal. Details of each type of market risks
are described as follows:

Interest rate risk management

The Group's fair value interest rate risk relates bank deposits with
original maturity more than three months and bank balances and
cash. In order to minimize the interest rate risk the banks deposits
made by the Group are all within one year.

Interest rate sensitivity

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the
exposure to interest rates for both bank deposits with original
maturity more than three months and bank balances at the balance
sheet date. For bank deposits with original maturity more than
three months and bank balances, the analysis is prepared assuming
the amount of asset outstanding at the balance sheet date was
outstanding for the whole year. 0.27% increase or decrease in
interest rate is used when reporting interest rate risk internally
to key management personnel and represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest rates.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2007

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (Cont’d)

Interest rate risk management (Cont’d)

Interest rate sensitivity (Cont’d)

If interest rates had been increased/decreased by 0.27% in interest
rate and all other variables were held constant, the Group's profit for
the year would increase/decrease by approximately RMB8,250,000
for the year ended 31st December, 2007 (2006: increase/decrease
by RMB6,451,000).

Foreign currency risk management

The Group has bank deposits with original maturity more than three
months, bank balances and cash, trade and other receivables, trade,
bills and other payables denominated in foreign currencies, hence
exposures to exchange rate fluctuations arises. The Group currently
does not use any derivative contracts to hedge against its exposure
to currency risk during the year. The Group manages its foreign
currency risk by closely monitoring the movement of the foreign
currency rate.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2007

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (Cont’d)

Foreign currency risk management (Cont’d)

The carrying amount of the Group's foreign currency denominated
monetary liabilities at the balance sheet dates are as follows:

2007 2006
ANREFT AREFT
RMB'000 RMB'000
Assets
Bank deposits with original maturity more
than three months, bank balances and cash
United State Dollar (“USD") 126,162 8,376
Japanese Yen ("JPY") 62,747 79,059
188,809 87,435
Trade and other receivables
JPY 15,191 11,942
Liabilities
Trade and other payables
JPY 49,982 30,134

Foreign currency sensitivity

The Group is mainly exposed to the effects of fluctuation in RMB,
the functional currency of respective group entities, to USD and
JPY.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2007

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (Cont’d)

Foreign currency risk management (Cont’d)

Foreign currency sensitivity (Cont'd)

The following table details the Group’'s sensitivity to a 5%
increase in the RMB against JPY and USD. 5% is the sensitivity
rate used when reporting foreign currency risk internally to key
management personnel and represents management’s assessment
of the reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates.
The sensitivity analysis includes outstanding foreign currency
denominated monetary items and adjusts their translation at
the period end for a 5% change in RMB against JPY and USD.
A negative number below indicates an decrease in profit for the
year where the RMB strengthen 5% against USD and JPY. For a
5% weakening of the RMB against USD and JPY, there would be
an equal and opposite impact on the profit for the year and the
balances below would be positive.

2007 2006
ANREFT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB'000

Profit for the year
usb (5,362) (356)
JPY (1,188) (2,587)

The Group’s sensitivity to foreign currency has increased during the
current year because of the increase in bank deposits with original
maturity more than three months, bank balances and cash, trade
and other payables which are denominated in USD and JPY.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2007

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (Cont’d)

Credit risk

At 31st December, 2007, the Group’'s maximum exposure to credit
risk which will cause on financial loss to the Group due to failure
to perform an obligation by the counterparties is arising from the
carrying amount of the respective recognised financial assets as
stated in the consolidated balance sheet.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the Group
has delegated a team responsible for determination of credit limits
and monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken
to recover overdue debtors. In addition, the Group reviews the
recoverable amount of each individual trade debtor at each balance
sheet date to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts.

Other than concentration of credit risk on amount due from related
parties, which have been disclosed in note 22, the Group does
not have significant concentration of credit risk on trade and other
receivables, with exposure spread over a number of counter parties
and customers. The credit risk on liquid fund is limited because
the Group’s bank deposits and bank balances are deposited with
authorised banks in the PRC with high credit-ratings.

Liquidity risk

At 31st December 2007, the Group had net current assets
amounting to RMB4,292,599,000 (2006: RMB3,562,350,000). The
directors consider that the Group is exposed to minimal liquidity
risk of being unable to raise sufficient funds to meet its financial
obligations when they fall due.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2007

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (Cont’d)

Liquidity risk (Cont’d)

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate
by the management to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate
the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The Group relies on
cash generated from operating activities as a significant source
of liquidity. For the year ended 31st December 2007, the Group
have cash generated from operating activities of approximately
RMB751,146,000 (2006: RMB1,418,307,000) trade receivable and
bills receivables can be received within six months based on the
earliest date on which the Group can require payments and bank
balances and deposits can be drawn on demand. The directors
believe that the Group will have sufficient funds available to meet its
financial obligations in the foreseeable future based on management
working capital forecast.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2007

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (Cont’d)

Liquidity risk (Cont’d)

The following tables detail the Group’s contractual maturity for its
non-derivative financial liabilities. The tables have been drawn up
based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based
on the earliest date on which the Group can be required to pay. The
table includes both interest and principal cash flows.

EFH LS |
RERH= RERE FR2
Weighted b REE
average  HR1MEA 123A 3ERE1E Total  Carrying
effective  Less than 1-3 3 months 1Z5% undiscounted  amount at
interest rate 1 month months to 1 year 1-5 years  cash flows year end

% AEREFT AREFT AREFL AREFIT AREFT AREFT
% RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

At 31 December 2007
Trade and bills payables — 350,823 223,175 235,667 — 809,665 809,665
Other payables — 84,607 48,101 81,245 213,953 213,953

435,430 271,276 316,912 1,023618 1,023,618

At 31 December 2006

Trade, and bills payables = 282,447 170,523 217,522 = 670,492 670,492
Other payables — 78,339 44,538 87,803 — 210,680 210,680
360,786 215,061 305,325 — 881,172 881,172
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2007

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(¢) Fair values

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities are
determined as follows:

o the fair value of other financial assets and financial liabilities
are determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing
models based on discounted cash flow analysis using prices or
rates from observable current market transactions as input.

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial
assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised costs in the
consolidated financial statements approximate their fair values.

6. REVENUE

Revenue represents revenue arising on goods sold by the Group
to outside customers, net of discounts and sales related tax. An
analysis of the Group’s revenue for the year is as follows:

2007 2006

ANRETFT AREFT

RMB'000 RMB'000

Sales of trucks and vehicles 3,660,099 3,218,272
Sales of automobile parts and accessories 196,414 124,170
3,756,513 3,342,442
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2007

7. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS

(a) Business segments

For management purposes, the Group is currently engaged in the
manufacture and sales of six products — light-duty trucks, multi-

purposes vehicles, pick-up trucks, heavy-duty trucks, other vehicles
and automobile parts and accessories.

Principal business segments are as follows:

Light-duty trucks — manufacture and sales of light-duty trucks

Multi-purposes vehicles — manufacture and sales of multi-purposes
vehicles

Pick-up trucks — manufacture and sales of pick-up trucks

Heavy-duty trucks — manufacture and sales of heavy-duty trucks

Other vehicles — manufacture and sales of vehicles other than

those identified as above
Automobile parts and accessories — manufacture and sales of automobile parts and
accessories
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2007

7. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS (Cont'd)

(a) Business segments (Cont’d)

()  Segment information about these businesses for the year

ended 31st December, 2007 is presented below:

RE
SNERE ERE SHEBMH
BENERE Multi- K+E Heavy- HH5E  Automobile
Light-duty purposes Pick-up duty Other parts and &E
trucks vehicles trucks trucks vehicles  accessories Consolidated
ANEETFT  AREFT  AREFT  AEETT  ARETT  AREFT  ARETT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
INCOME STATEMENT
Revenue 2,114,444 110,660 979,952 354,332 ikl 196,414 3,756,513
Result
Segment result 189,923 298 50,554 (43,817) 479 (21,988) 175,449
Unallocated corporate
expenses (80,229)
Unallocated interest
income 76,601
Unallocated other
income 19,091
Profit before tax 190,912
Income tax expense (19,798)
Profit for the year 171,114
RE
SHRAE ERE FHRBH
BRHAE Multi- R+E Heavy- Hih5E  Automobile
Light-duty ~ purposes Pick-up duty Other  parts and &E
trucks vehicles trucks trucks vehicles  accessories Consolidated
ANREFT  AREFT ARETT AREFr ARETr ARETT AREfr
RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
BALANCE SHEET
Assets
Segment assets 1,200,270 47,399 398,949 1,361,023 — 64,031 3,071,672
Interchangeable used
assets between
segments
— property, plant
and equipment 1,190,531
— prepaid lease
payments 43,207
— inventories 80,740
Unallocated corporate
assets 3,922,276
Consolidated total assets 8,308,426
Liabilities
Segment liabilities 204,736 11,060 72,265 19,785 — 11,604 319,350

Unallocated trade, bills
and other payables

Unallocated corporate
liabilities

Consolidated total
liabilities

847,214

21,363

E— )

1,187,917
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HZE2007F12H31HIEFE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2007
7. XEBRR#ESDIER(E) 7. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS (Cont'd)
(a) XK oI(E) (a) Business segments (Cont’d)
RE
SHHRE ERE SHREBH
BRFRE Multi- B8 Heavy-  Eft/5% Automobile
Light-duty  purposes Pick-up duty Other  parts and HEE A
trucks vehicles trucks trucks vehicles ies Unall d C |

NERTFT ARETT AREFT AREFL ARETT ABETT AREFL AREFT
RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

AfER OTHER

INFORMATION
REERE Allowance for obsolete

inventories — 11,397 28,562 10,606 3,389 — — 53,954
FEERRB(RHERER) Write back for obsolete

inventories (upon sale) — (11,578) (4,215) (1,935) (4,448) = = (22,176)
RENE BERRE Additions of property,

plant and equipment 6 — — 17,637 — — 8,744 26,387
BYEERE Amortisation of

intangible assets 3,276 925 3,939 5,249 — — — 13,389
nE BEREERE Depreciation of

property, plant

and equipment 138,178 1,945 99,967 83,287 — — 35,657 359,034
BLAcEY Amortisation of

prepaid lease

payments — — — — — — 1,189 1,189

78
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2007

7. ¥BRHUEDHERE) 7. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS (Cont’d)

(a) oI (E) (a) Business segments (Cont’d)

(i) BHE_ZTZTNF + = (i)  Segment information about these businesses for the year
Zt+—HALEFEZEED I ended 31st December, 2006 is presented below:
BREHMT :

RE

SMRNE E¥g FHERBH

BENERE Multi- K+E Heavy- HH5E  Automobile
Light-duty purposes Pick-up duty Other parts and &E
trucks vehicles trucks trucks vehicles  accessories Consolidated
ANREFT  AREFT AREFT AREFT ARETT ARETT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

BER INCOME STATEMENT

L'ON Revenue 2,067,746 95,541 811,295 245,478 (1,788) 124,170 3,342,442

e Result

AHEE Segment result 107,260 (29,926) 2,996 (6,931) 19,576 87,915

TAARZARER Unallocated corporate

expenses (38,069)
TR ZFBHRA Unallocated interest

income 34,449
BBRA Financial cost (9,467)
TAREZEMRA Unallocated other

income 14,913

B AR A Profit before tax 89,741

FrEB R Income tax expense (10,273)

FERA Profit for the year 79,468

AE
SWRAE E¥g FHRBH
BEERE Multi- B+E Heavy- Hih5E  Automobile
Light-duty  purposes Pick-up duty Other  parts and #a
trucks vehicles trucks trucks vehicles  accessories Consolidated
AREFT AREFT ARETT ARETr ARETr ARETT AREfz
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
RERR% BALANCE SHEET
BE Assets
PHEE Segment assets 1,361,952 166,306 500,684 — 66,973 3,343,554
PPzAXREE Interchangeable used
assets between
segments
-0% BERRE — property, plant
and equipment 1,621,359
-EfftiEe — prepaid lease
payments 44,396
-G8 — inventories 73741
TAPEAREE Unallocated corporate
assets 2,835,028
GABEE Consolidated total assets 7,918,078
afE Liabilities
AHEE Segment liabilities 104,069 4,024 31,139 — 5,206 189,177
TSRz BAES  REREMERKR Unallocated trade, bills
and other payables 784,887
FUAEZ AARE Unallocated corporate
liabilities 6,523
GREERE Consolidated total
liabilities

7%

980,587
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2007

7. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS (Cont’d)

(a) Business segments (Cont’d)

HHERE
Light-duty
trucks
AEBTFT
RMB'000

OTHER

INFORMATION
Write back for

bad and doubtful

debts (upon

collection) =
Allowance for

obsolete

inventories -
Write back for

obsolete

inventories

(upon sale) =
Additions of

property, plant

and equipment 2,329
Amortisation of

intangible assets 5,148
Depreciation of

property, plant

and equipment
Amortisation of

prepaid lease

payments —

121,085

SHHRE
Multi-
purposes
vehicles
AREFT
RMB'000

(4,060)

3,579

(12,990)

3,369

1,290

11,082

B+E
Pick-up
trucks
NERTFT
RMB'000

3,203

3,572

76,425

il
Heavy-
duty
trucks
ANEETT
RMB000

(88)

1,935

7,947

5,249

20,418

RE

SHRHBHE

H155E  Automobile
Other  parts and HEE ]
vehicles ies  Unallocated Consolidated
NEETT ARETT AREFT AREFT
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
(3,931) (388) = (8,618)
2,806 — — 11,486
= = = (12,990)
= = 7,013 23,861
— — - 15,259
— — 27,740 256,730
= = 1,189 1,189
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2007

7. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS (Cont’d)

(b) Geographical segments

(i) All of the production facilities of the Group are located in the
PRC and substantially all of the sales of the Group are also
made to customers located in the PRC. The Group has made
limited export sales to countries outside PRC which accounted
for approximately 3.30% (2006: 2.41%) of the Group’s
revenue.

(i) All of the carrying amount of segment assets and additions to
property, plant and equipment are located in the PRC for both
years presented.

8. FINANCE COSTS

2007 2006
AEEFT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB'000
Interest expense on bank loans wholly
repayable within five years — 9,467




%R MR

B ZE2007612A31 B ILEE

9. KRB AIER

B B A A 2 H1 B
X

FaRkEBEN
SRR E R

e

BEIRA(BREZREZHS
(B K7£10))

FEEMR
BVAERH(BEHERT)

REMM 2

NE - BELRETE
REAMEWE

R Rk 3

HENE BELREZER
ReEHENF RERENR

MERFAEXL(EFHAERER)

MNEBEFR
BRBRAXMEERA

REGtA
RITERRAHZFERA
SME Y28
FREERRE(RHERED)
ZHRERRE(RUDERR)
HRET BARESIZEWA
REREEENRITH

B A B (B )
HERRM

Brat - 3077 BT [R) 7S S [ 35 R B 765 = Bl it

BERZA -

82

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2007

9. PROFIT BEFORE TAX

Profit before tax has been arrived at after charging:

Salaries and other payments and benefits
Retirement benefits scheme contributions

Total staff costs (including directors' and supervisors’

remuneration (see note 10))

Allowance for obsolete inventories

Amortisation of intangible assets (included in cost
of sales)

Auditors’ remuneration

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Depreciation of investment property

Amortisation of prepaid lease payments

Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment

Minimum lease payments under operating leases
in respect of rented premises

Research and development costs (included in
administrative expenses)

Net foreign exchange loss

Cost of inventories recognised as an expense

and after crediting:

Interest income from bank deposits and balances

Foreign exchange gain

Write back allowance for obsolete inventories
(upon sale)

Write back for bad and doubtful debts
(upon collection)

Income from renting of building, moulds and
tooling equipment

Written off of long outstanding trade payable

Government grant (note)

Sales of scrap raw materials

2007 2006
AEBTT AEETT
RMB'000 RMB'000
81,727 70,143
10,141 9,226
91,868 79,369
53,954 11,486
13,389 15,259
3,061 2,980
359,034 256,730
1,029 —
1,189 1,189
1,930 35
10,703 10,129
18,038 7,789
4,414 —
3,067,177 2,850,531
76,601 34,449
= 1,477
22,176 12,990
= 8,618
10,299 6,059
54 2,450

8,228 1,938

21 1,689

Note: Local government granted a financial subsidy to the Group for development of

the Group's business.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2007

10. DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Executive directors
W Yun
Gao Jianmin
Miyatake Yoshiyuki
Liu Guangming
Pan Yong
Yue Huagjang
Neotoshi Tsutsumi

Hosoi Susumu

Independent non-executive
directors
Long Tao
Song Xiaojiang

Xu Bingjin

Supervisors’ remuneration
Min Qing
Zheng Gang
Zhou Hong
Liv Qi
Feng Jialing

e
BEL

(#)

HER  Performance

AfER
Salaries
#&  andother
Fee benefits

ARETE  ARETR

AMB000  RMB000

= 258
= m

= m
= m
= m

related
incentive

payments

(note)

AMB000

EiEA

Fii 15
Retirement
benefit
scheme
contributions
AEKTTE
RMB000

=2 e
2007

&t k3

Fee

AR NEETT

RMBO00  RMB000

263 =
m =

m =
21 =
m =

#ER
AfeEA
Salaries

and other
benefits
NEHTR

RMB'000

25
193

193
193
193

i 53
B
Performance
related
incentive
payments
NEETR
RMB'000

RHER

b 12
Retirement
benefit
scheme
contributions
AEHTR

RMB'000

=2
2006

#it

Total
NEEFE

RMB'000

29
197

197
197
197

Note: The performance related incentive payment is determined by reference to the

individual performance of the supervisors and approved by the Remuneration

Committee.

No directors waived any emoluments in the year ended 31st
December 2007.

All the five highest paid individuals of the Group for both years were

directors.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2007

11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

2007 2006

ANRETFT AREFT

RMB’000 RMB’000

Current tax 29,141 11,683
Over provision of current tax in prior year (1,250) (1,310)
Deferred tax credit (note 27) (8,093) —
19,798 10,273

According to the “Notice of certain measures for implementation of
exploration and development of western zone” issued by the State
Council of the PRC, domestic investment enterprises and foreign
investment enterprises located in the western zone of the PRC of a
production nature and engaged in the business encouraged by the
State Government are entitled to PRC Enterprise Income Tax at the
rate of 15% effective from 1st January, 2001. Besides, subsidiary
of the Company, EEERIEAEBR AT (“Qingling Moulds”), is
qualified as an enterprise with advance technology to entitle to a
preferential tax rate of 10%.

On 16th March, 2007, PRC promulgated the Law of the People’s
Republic of China on Enterprise Income Tax (the “New Law") by
Order No. 63 of the President of the People’s Republic of China.
On 6th December 2007, the State Council of the PRC issued
Implementation Regulations of the New Law. The New Law and
Implementation Regulations will change the tax rate from 33% to
25% for certain subsidiaries from 1st January, 2008. According
to the Implementation of Transitional Preferential Policies for
Enterprise Income Tax by Guo Fa [2007] No. 39, the Group can
continue to entitle the Enterprise Income Tax rate of 15% for the
subsidiaries located in the western zone. According to the New
Law, Qingling Moulds is re-applying to qualify as an enterprise with
advance technology. The Enterprise Income Tax rate of Qingling
Moulds will be 15% due to the fact that it is located in western
zone, and the re-application result will have no influence on the tax
rate of 15%.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2007

11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Cont’d)

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit per
consolidated income statement as follows:

2007 2006
ARETT ARETT
RMB'000 RMB'000

Profit before tax: 190,912 89,741

Tax at the domestic income tax rate of

15% (2006:15%) 28,637 13,461
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for

tax purpose 244 123
Tax effect of income not taxable for

tax purpose (2,955) (1,048)
Utilisation of deductible temporary difference

not recognised — (928)
Additional tax benefit and refund applicable to

the Group (note) (4,724) —
Effect of different tax rate in a subsidiary (154) (25)
Overprovision in prior year (1,250 (1,310)
Tax charge for the year 19,798 10,273
Note:

The additional tax benefit and refund applicable to the Group are as follows:

(1) Pursuant to the relevant tax rules and regulation, technical fee can be over-

deducted 50% from income tax payable, which amounted to RMB2,044,000.

(2) Pursuant to the relevant tax rules and regulations, the Company claimed PRC
Enterprise Income Tax credits on 40% of the acquisition cost of certain qualified
equipments in PRC Enterprise Income Tax Expense in excess of that in the

previous year, which amounted to RMB2,680,000.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2007

12. TRANSFER TO STATUTORY SURPLUS RESERVE
FUND

The statutory surplus reserve fund represents the appropriation of
10% of profit after taxation for the year of the Company and its
subsidiary — EEEXEEBR A7 (“Qingling Moulds”), calculated
in accordance with PRC Accounting Standards and Regulations
("PRC GAAP") and the Articles of Association of the Company
and Qingling Moulds. The appropriation may cease to apply if the
balance of the statutory surplus reserve fund has reached 50% of
the registered share capital of the Company and Qingling Moulds
in respectively. According to the Articles of Association of the
Company and Qingling Moulds, statutory surplus reserve fund
can be used to make up prior year losses, to expand production
operations or to increase share capital. The Company and Qingling
Moulds may capitalise the statutory surplus reserve fund by way
of bonus issues provided that the remaining amount of statutory
surplus reserve fund after such distribution shall not be less than
25% of the registered share capital of the Company and Qingling
Moulds. The amount shall be submitted to shareholders’ general
meeting for approval.

In prior years, pursuant to the PRC Company Law, the Company
made allocation from profit after taxation at the rate 5% to 10% to
the statutory public welfare fund. The fund can only be utilised for
capital expenditure on employee’s collective welfare facilities and
cannot be used in staff welfare expenses. Such employee welfare
facilities are owned by the Company. The statutory public welfare
fund is not distributable to shareholders other than in liquidation.

From 1st January 2006, according to the revised PRC Company
Law, the Company is not required to make such transfers. The
directors of the Company resolved to transfer the statutory public
welfare fund of RMB354,269,000 as at 1st January 2006 to
statutory surplus reserve fund which is in compliance with PRC
Company Law.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2007

13. TRANSFER TO DISCRETIONARY SURPLUS RESERVE
FUND

The amount transferred to discretionary surplus reserve fund is
based on 30% (2006: 30%) of the profit after taxation for the year
of a subsidiary of the Company — Qingling Moulds, prepared in
accordance with PRC GAAP and Articles of Association of Qingling
Moulds. The amount shall be submitted to board of directors for
approval.

14. DIVIDEND

2007 2006
ARBTT ARETFT
RMB'000 RMB'000

Dividends recognised as distributions
during the year:
Final, paid — RMBO0.02 (2006: RMB0.02) per share 49,645 49,645

A final dividend of RMBO0.03 (2006: RMB: 0.02) per share has
been proposed by the directors and is subject to approval by the
shareholders in the forthcoming annual general meeting.
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15. BREF 15. EARNINGS PER SHARE
HE_ZZtLtF+-HA=+—H The calculation of the basic earnings per share attributable to the
IEFEARBEBRRREMLE ordinary equity holders of the Company for the year ended 31st
fREXRZFIRETIERGTE - December, 2007 is based on the following data:

Z7 Earnings

2007 2006
ARBTL ARETT
RMB'000 RMB'000

BUAGESREARTIMZF Earnings for the purpose of basic earnings per share
(RABIREEEEERF]) (profit for the year attributable to
equity holders of the Company) 159,236 77,688
Bz 4 2 B Number of shares
2007 2006
& TR
‘000 ‘000
BUAGESREARAMBRMDSE Number of shares for the purpose of
basic earnings per share 2,482,268 2,482,268
TR B 4E 2 X 4 AT (] 7] B B A i There were no potential diluted ordinary shares in both years
presented.

BREZEAER -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2007

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

B %EB
BE BE R
R#E  Furniture,
Moulds, fixtures RE  ERIE
#F  plantand and Motor Construction @it
Buildings  machinery  equipment vehicles in progress Total
ANRETT ANEEFT ARETT ARETr AREFTT AREFX
RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
cosT
At 1st January, 2006 651,188 4,092,450 62,484 25,144 132,545 4,963,811
Additions — — — — 23,861 23,861
Transfer of construction in progress 3,460 11,854 3,251 - (18,565) =
Disposals = (32) = (436) = (468)
At 31st December, 2006 654,648 4,104,272 65,735 24,708 137,841 4,987,204
Additions — 420 — 119 25,848 26,387
Transfer from construction
in progress 599 121,09 3177 — (124,871) —
Transfer to investment property (125,962) — — - — (125,962)
Disposals to a jointly
controlled entity — (415,111) — — — (415,111)
Disposals (18,755) (895) (445) (917) — (21,012)
At 31st December, 2007 510,630 3,809,781 68,467 23,910 38818 4,451,506
DEPRECIATION
At 1st January, 2006 243,008 1,165,395 40,083 17,674 — 1,466,160
Provided for the year 30,750 218,089 6,272 1,619 — 256,730
Eliminated on disposals - (16) — (392) — (408)
At 31st December, 2006 273,758 1,383,468 46,355 18,901 — 1722482
Provided for the year 27,930 324,687 5430 987 — 359,034
Transfer to investment property (69,583) = = = = (69,683)
Eliminated on disposals to a
jointly controlled entity - (213,137) — - — (213,137)
Eliminated on disposals (14,522) (602) 2) (790) — (15,916)
At 31st December, 2007 227583 1494416 51,783 19,098 — 1,792,880
CARRYING VALUES
At 31st December, 2007 282,947 2,315,365 16,684 4,812 38818 2,658,626
At 31st December, 2006 380,890 2,720,804 19,380 5,807 137,841 3,264,722
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2007

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont'd)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated
on a straight-line basis at the following rates per annum:

Buildings Over the shorter of the lease
term or 20 years
Moulds, plant and machinery, 10 years

except for specialised production
facilities and moulds

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 5 years
Motor vehicles 5 years

Specialised production facilities and moulds included in moulds,
plant and machinery which can be identified in relation to specific
production processes are depreciated by reference to the expected
production volume of these facilities and moulds. Other moulds,
plant and machinery which are for general production purposes are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over 10 years.

As at 31st December 2007, the carrying amount of the specialised
production facilities and moulds was RMB2,020,884,000 (2006:
RMB2,575,080,000) and the depreciation rate, determined using the
basis set out above, was 7.16% (2006: 5.36%).

As at 31st December 2007, the carrying amount of moulds and
machinery that has been leased out was RMB894,652,000 (2006:
RMB68,150,000).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2007

17. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

The Group's prepaid lease payments comprise:
Medium-term land use right in PRC

Analysis for reporting purpose as:
Non-current asset
Current asset

18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

COST
At 1st January
Transfer from property, plant and equipment

At 31st December

DEPRECIATION AND IMPAIRMENT

At 1st January

Transfer from property, plant and equipment
Provided for the year

At 31st December

CARRYING VALUES
At 31st December

2007 2006
ARETT ARETT
RMB'000 RMB'000
43,207 44,396
42,018 43,207
1,189 1,189
43,207 44,396
2007 2006
ARETT ARETT
RMB'000 RMB'000
125,962 —
125,962 —
59,583 —
1,029 —
60,612 —
65,350 —
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2007

18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Cont’d)

During the year, the Company leased out certain properties to its
jointly controlled entity, Qingling Isuzu Engine, for an initial term of
3 years. These properties were reclassified from property, plant and
equipment to investment properties.

The above investment properties are depreciated on a straight-line
basis over 20 years.

19. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

BEEE
Technical transfer fees
2007 2006
ANEEFT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
COST
At 1st January and 31st December 271,333 271,333
AMORTISATION
At 1st January 204,121 188,862
Provided for the year 13,389 15,259
At 31st December 217,510 204,121
CARRYING AMOUNT
At 31st December 53,823 67,212

Payments of technology transfer fees and lump sum royalties
under technology transfer agreements with Isuzu Motors Limited
(“Isuzu”) are capitalised as intangible assets and are amortised
over their economic useful lives ranging from ten years to thirteen
years, commencing from the use of the technologies in production.
Continuing royalties payable to Isuzu under the technology transfer
agreements are charged to the expenses as and when incurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2007

20. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURE

Qingling Isuzu (Chongging) Engine Co., Ltd. (B AR+ (BEF) %
AR A A, "Qingling Isuzu Engine”) was established in May
2007, and is mainly engaged in manufacture of engines and relevant
parts. The registered capital is US$84,260,000, and the Company
contributed US$42,130,000, approximately RMB307,743,000 to
Qingling Isuzu Engine. The Company and Isuzu Motors Limited
(“Isuzu”) held 50% of issued capital respectively.

As at 31st December 2007, the Group had interests in the following
jointly controlled entity:

AEEHR
ZBET
£ RAHEEL A BEZ
BEFN TEEEMY Proportion RERLH
Form of 1T B 3L B Principal of nominal value Proportion TEEK
ERER business Place of place of of issued capital of voting Principal
Name of entity structure incorporation operation held by the Group power held activities
BRAOTH aE Ak Sz h th B 50% 50% EEL- Y&
EEH Incorporated PRC PRC ) BE
Qingling Isuzu Manufacture
Engine of engines

&8

and relevant
parts
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EHZ2007F12A8318 1L EE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2007

20, REFEHERER (&) 20. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURE (Cont’'d)

NEE KRS E B ER The summarised financial information in respect of the Group's
(FAGsELAER TEEZ interest in jointly controlled entity which is accounted for using
OB R proportionate consolidation with the line-by-line reporting format is

set out below:

2007 2006
ARBTL ARETT
RMB'000 RMB'000

MEAE Current assets 133,040 —
EnBEE Non-current assets 205,589 -
mEAE Current liabilities 210,765 —
EEIR=N Non-current liabilities = =
A Income 64,779 =
(53 Expenses 64,440 =
EERF Profit for the year 339 —
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Bt %% 3R X M &F NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ZE2007FE12831H IEEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2007

21. 7§ 21. INVENTORIES

2007 2006
ARETT ARETT
RMB'000 RMB000

R Raw materials 438,050 462,608
E®m Work in progress 88,675 103,607
SURK Finished goods 126,552 394,193

653,277 960,408

22, FEW R H it B WK IR 22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(a) REEH FBRERAKEMD (a) At the balance sheet date, the balance of trade and other
JEWRIBER BIERIKNERSE receivables includes amounts due from subsidiaries of
WEBAR MEKRA KE Qingling Group and Qingling Isuzu Engine as follows:

B IR BB

2007 2006
ARETT ARETT
RMB'000 RMB'000

EREEHNBLA Subsidiaries of Qingling Group 8,684 1,676
ERATRETH Qingling Isuzu Engine 194,953 —
203,637 1,676
FEUBE 82 S B BT & A 7 2 5K IE & Receivables from subsidiaries of Qingling Group were in trade
B5HE RRHVYA=MAA - nature and aged within 3 months.
JEUREESS A T8 B 2 I A Receivables from Qingling Isuzu Engine is non-trade nature,
FESHEE ERMEHERAR interest-free and recoverable within 12 months from the balance
= EARRYE - sheet.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2007

22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Cont’d)

(b) As at balance sheet date, the aged analysis of trade
receivables, net of allowances, of the Group is as follows:

2007 2006

AREFT AREFT

RMB'000 RMB'000

Within 3 months 80,865 21,727
Between 3 to 6 months 17 8
Between 7 to 12 months 15 5
Between 1 to 2 years 5 1,095
Over 2 years 1,200 920
82,102 23,755

Other receivables 233,742 12,340
Prepayments 9,391 6,132
325,235 42227

As at 31st December 2007, trade and other receivables of
RMB15,191,000 (2006: RMB11,942,000) were denominated in JPY,
other than the functional currency of the respective group entities.

Before accepting any new customer, the Group uses an external
credit scoring system to assess the potential customer’s credit
quality and defines credit limits by customer. Limits and scoring
attributed to customers are reviewed twice a year. 98% (2006:
91%) of the trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired
have the best credit scoring attributable under the external credit
scoring system used by the Group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2007

22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Cont’d)

(b) As at balance sheet date, the aged analysis of trade
receivables, net of allowances, of the Group is as follows:
(Cont'd)

The average credit period on sales of goods is 3 to 6 months.

Included in the Group's trade receivable balance are debtors
with a carrying amount of approximately RMB1,220,000 (2006:
approximately RMB2,020,000) which are past due at the reporting
date for which the Group has not provided for impairment loss,
because most of the receivables have been subsequently settled.
The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

Aging of trade receivables which are past due but not impaired:

2007 2006
ARBTL ARETT
RMB'000 RMB'000

Between 7 to 12 months 15 B
Between 1 to 2 years 5 1,095
Over 2 years 1,200 920

1,220 2,020
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2007

22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Cont’d)

(b) As at balance sheet date, the aged analysis of trade
receivables, net of allowances, of the Group is as follows:
(Cont'd)

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts
2007 2006

ARBTET ARETT
RMB'000 RMB'000

Balance at beginning of the year 4,595 13,213
Amounts written off as uncollectible = (8,618)
Balance at ending of the year 4,595 4,595

Included in the allowance for doubtful debts are individually impaired
trade receivables with an aggregate balance of RMB4,595,000
(2006: RMB4,595,000) which are in severe financial difficulties.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2007

23. BILLS RECEIVABLES

As at balance sheet date, the aged analysis of bills receivables of
the Group is as follows:

2007 2006

AREFT AREFT

RMB’000 RMB'000

Within 1 month 279,783 219,509
Between 1 to 2 months 162,932 116,342
Between 2 to 3 months 137,712 112,638
Between 4 to 6 months 325,507 279,659
905,934 728,148

All the above bills receivables are guaranteed by banks and their
expiry dates ranged from 30 to 180 days.

24. BANK DEPOSITS WITH ORIGINAL MATURITY MORE
THAN THREE MONTHS

The amounts represented bank fixed deposits with original maturity
of 6 to 12 months and their respective interest rates are ranging
from 2.79% to 3.60% (2006: 2.25% to 2.52%) per annum.

As at 31st December, 2007, fixed deposits amounted to
RMB61,432,000 (2006: RMB5,935,000) were denominated in USD
other than the functional currency of the respective group entities.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2007

25. SHARE CAPITAL

2007 F % 2006
2007 and 2006
ARETTT
RMB’000

Registered, issued and fully paid 2,482,268

IR & B

Number of shares
2007 £ }.2006
2007 and 2006
T

‘000

Shares of RMB1 each
— Domestic shares 1,243,616
— H shares 1,238,652

2,482,268

Domestic shares are ordinary shares subscribed for and credited
as fully paid up in Renminbi by PRC government and/or PRC
incorporated entities and H Shares are ordinary shares subscribed
for and credited as fully paid up in Renminbi by persons other than
PRC government and/or PRC incorporated entities.

Domestic shares and H shares rank pari passu in all respects with
each other.

Domestic shares are not freely traded in the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange.

There were no change in the registered, issued and fully paid share
capital of the Company during both years.



%R M

B ZE2007612A31 B ILEE

26. BN REREME
IR

(a) MREER ENEXRBEE
HRE+REEZ2EHNE AR
A+R(FBEEEBRAA
(ATHBARIATRER])
EREEREREENHE
ANAIKRIBIAT -

ER&H
EREENBLR
ht#&E

tRFERESEEEER 2
B RBOHNERBFHARIE
6fE A -

b) REER AEEZEMNE
KR EN FE R R b o T
™~

3fEA A
3Z6fH A
VEIVAENE
1218 A £

H ot e RR X
EL T

101

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2007

26. TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER PAYABLES

(@) At the balance sheet date, the balances of trade payables

included the amounts due to Isuzu and its wholly-owned

subsidiaries, Isuzu (China) Holding Co., Ltd.

(hereafter

collectively referred to as “Isuzu Group”), Qingling Group and

subsidiaries of Qingling Group as follows:

2007 2006

ANEEFT ARETT

RMB’000 RMB’000

Qingling Group 1,529 10,441
Subsidiaries of Qingling Group 36,728 31,173
Isuzu Group 62,791 54,860
101,048 96,474

These amounts are in trade nature, unsecured, interest free and the

average credit period on purchases of materials is 3 to 6 months.

(b) As at balance sheet date, the aged analysis of trade and bills

payables of the Group is as follows:

2007 2006

ANRETFT AREFT

RMB’000 RMB'000

Within 3 months 687,817 593,737
Between 3 to 6 months 121,322 76,292
Between 7 to 12 months 8 42
Over 12 months 518 421
809,665 670,492

Other payables 213,953 210,680
Advance from customers 142,946 92,892
1,166,564 974,064
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2007

26. TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER PAYABLES (Cont’d)

As at balance sheet date, trade, bills and other payables amounted
to RMB49,982,000 (2006: RMB30,134,000), are denominated in
JPY, other than the functional currency of the respective group
entities.

27. DEFERRED TAXATION ASSETS

The following are the major deferred tax assets recognised and
movements thereon during the current year:

FEXEE
Allowance for
inventories
ARETT
RMB'000

At 1st January 2007 —
Credit to consolidated income statement for the year 8,093

—_— I

At 31st December 2007 8,093

28. BANK BALANCES AND CASH

The market interest rate of bank balances is from 0.72% to 0.81%
(2006: 0.72%) per annum. The bank balances and cash that are
denominated in currencies other than the functional currencies of
the relevant Group entities are set out below:

2007 2006
ARETT ARETT

RMB'000 RMB'000

usD 64,730 2,441
JPY 62,747 79,059
127,477 81,500
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EHZ2007F12A8318 1L EE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2007
29. BEERS 29. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/BALANCES
& E R E R 5 A M iE22(a) The Group's related party balances are set out in Notes 22(a) and
N26(a) - 26(a).
NEEFA - AN E R E B During the year, the Group entered into the following transactions
TTRARS with related parties:
(i) HEREEREMBATHN (i) Transactions with Qingling Group and its subsidiaries
R 5 &t
(a) BREE  ARFZ& (@) Qingling Group, the ultimate holding company of the
BRI A Company
XEESE Type of transaction

2007 2006
ARBTT ARETFT
RMB'000 RMB'000

BEARETHMH Purchases of automobile parts 57,353 71,640
&S E M R EMBAE Sales of parts and raw materials
EERBTHH for the manufacture of

automobile parts 30,122 29,363
HERER#ER WA Income from renting of moulds

and machinery 5,980 5,859
REEZ N Service fee expense 256 300
HEEES T Expenses for renting warehouse 5,830 5,830
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2007

29.

(i)

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/BALANCES
(Cont'd)

Transactions with Qingling Group and its subsidiaries
(Cont’d)

(b)

EEE%EEABR AR, a subsidiary of Qingling Group

Type of transaction
2007 2006
AEBTT ARETT
RMB'000 RMB'000

Purchases of automobile parts 67,369 54,399
Sales of parts and raw materials for the
manufacture of automobile parts 11,112 10,119

EEERIBEAR AR, a subsidiary of Qingling Group

Type of transaction

2007 2006

ANREFT ARETFT

RMB’000 RMB’000

Purchases of automobile parts 48,887 46,419
Sales of parts and raw materials

for the manufacture of
automobile parts 3,920 2,977
Income from renting of building 200 200
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HZE2007F12H31HIEFE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2007
29. BEXR S (&) 29. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/BALANCES
(Cont’d)
(i) EEREEREMEATHN (i) Transactions with Qingling Group and its subsidiaries
R uer (&) (Cont’d)
d EEEREBARA (d) BEEH%RBBAERR AR, asubsidiary of Qingling Group
A BEREBZWBA
=]
XEEH Type of transaction

2007 2006
ARETT ARETT
RMB'000 RMB000

BEAET M Purchases of automobile parts 238,552 274,008
& T E M R B BHAE Sales of parts and raw materials
EERETHH for the manufacture of

automobile parts 54,590 76,335

BEEELEE Purchase of plant and equipment — 7,947
(e) EEERBEERAR (e) EEEH#ABERABMRAT, a subsidiary of Qingling
AR BREB KB Group
YNE]
XEEH Type of transaction
2007 2006

ARETT ARETT
RMB'000 RMB'000

BEASTHH Purchases of automobile parts 24,654 25,667
HES MR FEM B AE Sales of parts and raw materials
KEARETHH for the manufacture of
automobile parts 6,736 7,043
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2007

29.

(i)

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/BALANCES
(Cont'd)

Transactions with Qingling Group and its subsidiaries
(Cont’d)

(f)

EEESPFEAR AR, a subsidiary of Qingling Group

Type of transaction
2007 2006
AEBTT ARETT
RMB'000 RMB'000

Purchases of automobile parts 45,008 46,319
Sales of parts and raw materials

for the manufacture of

automobile parts 15,924 17,059
Purchase of plant and equipment — 1,723

EERHEIRAR AT, a subsidiary of Qingling Group

Type of transaction
2007 2006
AREFT ARETT
RMB'000 RMB'000

Purchases of automobile parts 11,266 9,124
Sales of ports and raw materials

for the manufacture of

automobile parts 732 968
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2007

29. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/BALANCES

(ii)

(iii)

Above

(Cont'd)

Transactions with Isuzu Group that is controlled by Isuzu,

the substantial shareholder of the Company:

Type of transaction

2007

ARETT

RMB’000

Royalties on sale of trucks and other vehicles 30,913
Sales of accessory sets and other automobile

parts and components 121,171

Purchases of parts and components 775,490

2006
ARETFTL
RMB'000

24,546

80,438
233,186

Transactions with Qingling Isuzu Engine, a joint control

entity of the Group

Type of transaction

2007 2006

AREFT ARETT

RMB’000 RMB’000

Sales of property, plant and equipment 408,602 —

Sales of accessory sets and raw materials 90,824 —

Purchases of automobile parts 129,494 —
Income for renting property, plant and

equipment 7,114 —

transactions represented the total balances before

elimination of the Group's interests of 50% in the jointly controlled

entity based on proportional consolidation.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2007

29. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/BALANCES
(Cont'd)

(iv) Transactions/balances with other state-controlled entities
in the PRC

The Group operates in an economic environment currently
predominated by entities directly or indirectly owned or controlled
by the PRC government (“state-controlled entities”). In addition,
the Group itself is part of a larger group of companies under
Qingling Group which is controlled by the PRC government. Apart
from the transactions with Qingling Group and its subsidiaries
disclosed in section (i) above, the Group also conducts businesses
with other state-controlled entities. The directors consider those
state-controlled entities are independent third parties so far as the
Group’s business transactions with them are concerned.

Material transactions/balances with other state-controlled entities
are as follow:

2007 2006

ANREFT AREFT

RMB’000 RMB’000

Trade sales 786,292 671,963

Trade purchases 435,871 391,510

Trade balances due to other

state-controlled entities 181,766 154,740
Trade balances due from other

state-controlled entities 179,931 116,610
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2007

29. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/BALANCES
(Cont'd)

(iv) Transactions/balances with other state-controlled entities
in the PRC (Cont’d)

In addition, the Group has entered into various transactions,
including utilities services and surcharges/taxes charged by the
PRC government, and deposits and borrowings and other general
banking facilities with certain banks and financial institutions which
are state-controlled entities in its ordinary course of business. In
view of the nature of these banking transactions, the directors are
of the opinion that separate disclosure would not be meaningful.

Except as disclosed above, the directors are of the opinion that
transactions with other state-controlled entities are not significant to
the Group’s operations.

(v) Compensation of directors and key management
personnel

The short term benefits paid or payable by the Group to directors
of the Company and other members of key management during the
year is approximately RMB2,132,000 (2006: RMB1,806,000).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2007

30. COMMITMENTS

(@) At the balance sheet date, the Group had the following capital
commitments:

2007 2006
ARBTL ARETT
RMB'000 RMB'000

Contracted for but not provided in the
consolidated financial statements in respect of
acquisition of property, plant and equipment 2,733 336

(b) The Company should contribute US$42,130,000
(approximately RMB307,743,000) to Qingling Isuzu Engine,
a joint venture of the Company, according to agreement and
article. As at balance sheet date, the Company has made
its initial capital injection of US$16,852,000 (approximately
RMB127,538,000) to Qingling Isuzu Engine and has not
yet contributed the remaining amount of US$25,278,000
(approximately RMB180,205,000) at 31st December 2007.

(c) On 28th December, 2007, the Company and Isuzu entered
into an agreement to establish Qingling Isuzu (Chongging)
Automobile Sales and Service Co., Ltd. (B# A T#H(ERE)S
BIHERBER AR “Qingling Isuzu Automobile”) to engage
in the sales of vehicles and their parts manufactured by the
Group, development of after-sales service and supply of parts
for maintenance. Pursuant to the agreement, the Company
will contribute US$2,300,000 approximately RMB16,801,000
(2006: nil), for taking up 50% share capital of Qingling Isuzu
Automobile. The establishment of Qingling Isuzu Automobile
is in progress and is subject to the approval of the relevant
authorities of the PRC government.



%R M

B ZE20076 12831 ILEE

31. K¥HAE
AEBEREBA

REER - KEBERET OB
KA ARE/MNRERIE
HEREWAT

1R
FEEROF(BREEMF)

KReHERBEAEEERREE
XNWEE  HBEHEHTHEE
R—FEME o

AEMEREHAA

REEH  AEBEHAFEZ KK
REBEXMAEELHWOT :

1R
FEEROF(EREEMF)

BRIAEREN  AEBERGEER
88 EMRIE A BEME
BERKEMENEERE LR
KA E ST AHE -

111

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2007

31. OPERATING LEASE
The Group as lessee
At the balance sheet date, the Group had commitments for future

minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases
which fall due as follows:

2007 2006

AREFT ARETT

RMB'000 RMB'000

Within one year 568 8,302
In the second to fifth years inclusive 6 164
574 8,466

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group
for certain of its warehouses. Leases are negotiated for an average
term of one or two years.

The Group as lessor

At the balance sheet date, the Group had contracted with tenants
for the following future minimum lease payments:

2007 2006

ANREFT ARETFT

RMB’000 RMB’000

Within one year 35,911 5,859
In the second to fifth years inclusive 69,100 —
105,011 5,859

Other than the above, the Group does not have any other
commitments for future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases of property plant and equipment and
investment property at the balance sheet date.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2007

32. RETIREMENT BENEFITS PLANS

The Group has a service agreement with its ultimate holding
company, Qingling Group, whereby the Company will reimburse
the contributions made by Qingling Group to a defined contribution
pension scheme administered by the municipal government in
respect of the staff of the Group. According to such scheme,
Qingling Group shall annually pay an amount, calculated at a
percentage of the total wages of the staff, to a retirement fund
administered by the municipal government. The amount paid during
the year under such arrangement amounted to RMB10,141,000
(2006: RMB9,226,000). Pensions shall be paid to the retired staff
out of this retirement fund.

At the balance sheet date, there were no forfeited contributions
which arose upon employees leaving the retirement benefits
scheme before they are fully vested in the contributions and which
are available to reduce the contributions payable by the Group in
future (2006: nil).
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mE — AEE
AEhE

PRC — Sino
foreign equity
joint venture

HE — e R
RERE

PRC — Sino
foreign equity
joint venture

EWMB AR L EKERDE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2007

33. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries at 31st December, 2007

and 31st December, 2006 are as follows:

EBEBKI
Form of
business
structure

Baljzav

Incorporated

AR

Incorporated

&R
Registered
capital

38,166,600 70
US$38,166,600

29,980,000 7T
US$29,980,000

EAREREEN

AMEREENE DL

Percentage of
nominal value of
registered capital
directly held
by the Company
2007 2006

50.56%  50.56%

51% 51%

FEEY

Principal activities

EESERE
HHmER
Production of
moulds for
the manufacture
of automobile parts

HARR R

Not yet
commenced
business

The subsidiaries had no debt securities outstanding at the end of the

year.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

Financial summary — in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards

BEt-A=t-HLEE
Year ended 31st December,
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
AEETT AEETT AEETT ARETT ARETT
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

Consolidated income

statements
Revenue 3,756,513 3342442 3212726 2,946,604 3,572,363
Profit before tax 190,912 89,741 46,374 128,381 187,935
Taxation (19,798) (10,273) (6,765) (15,904) (27,532)
Profit for the year 171,114 79,468 39,609 112,477 160,403
Attributable to:
Equity holders of
the Company 159,236 77,688 39,330 109,930 157,565
Minority interests 11,878 1,780 279 2,547 2,838

171,114 79,468 39,609 112,477 160,403
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

Financial summary — in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards

MTZA=t-HLEE

As at 31st December,
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
AEETT AEETT AEETT ARETT ARETT
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

Consolidated
balance sheets
Total assets 8,308,426 7,918,078 8,212,316 8,564,328 8,462,003

Total liabilities (1,187,917)  (980,587) (1,343,842) (1,611,353) (1,497,392)
Total equity 7120509 6,937,491 6,868,474 6,952,975 6,964,611
Attributable to:
Equity holders of
the Company 6,827,627 6,718,036 6,689,991 6,774,771 6,788,954
Minority interests 292,882 219,455 178,483 178,204 175,657

7120509 6,937,491 6868474 6,952,975 6,964,611
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PROPOSAL FOR APPROPRIATION OF PROFIT
FOR THE YEAR OF 2007

In accordance with the pertinent regulations and based on the actual

situation of the Company, the board of directors of the Company

resolved that the proposed appropriation of profit for the year of
2007 be as follows:

Note:

The appropriation of net profits after taxation shall be: 10% for
Statutory Reserve Fund, 0% for Statutory Public Benefit Fund
(Note) and 90% for profit available for distribution.

A final dividend of RMBO0.03 per share in cash is proposed
to be paid to the shareholders whose names appear on the
register of shareholders on Monday, 26th May, 2008. Further
announcement will be made as to the exact form of payment.

This proposal is subject to the approval by the shareholders at
the annual general meeting.

In accordance with the amendment to the “Company Law of PRC” on 27th
October, 2005 effective from 1st January, 2006, and pursuant to the Company's
articles of association of the board of directors of the Company, the Company

decided not to accrue for Statutory Public Benefit Fund from the year of 2006.

Qingling Motors Co. Ltd
22nd April, 2008
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the Annual General Meeting of
Qingling Motors Co. Ltd (the “Company”) will be held at the
Conference Hall, 1st Floor of Qingling Motors Co. Ltd Office
Building, 1 Xiexing Cun, Zhongliangshan, Jiulongpo District,
Chongaing, the People’s Republic of China (“PRC"”) on Tuesday,
17th June, 2008 at 10:00 a.m. for the following purposes:

1. To consider and approve the report of the board of directors
of the Company (the “Board of Directors”) for the year of
2007.

2. To consider and approve the report of the supervisory
committee of the Company for the year of 2007.

3. To consider and approve the audited financial statements and
the independent auditor’s report of the Company for the year
of 2007.

4.  To consider and approve the proposal for appropriation of
profit of the Company for the year of 2007.

5. To accept the resignation of Mr. Yoshiyuki MIYATAKE as an
executive director of the Company with effect from the date
of this annual general meeting and to authorize the Board of
Directors to terminate the Company’s service contract with
him upon such terms and conditions as it may think fit and to
do all such acts and things to give effect to such matters.

6. To elect Mr. Makoto TANAKA as an executive director of the
Company to hold office from the date of this annual general
meeting to the date of the annual general meeting of the
Company for the year of 2009 and to authorize the Board of
Directors to enter into a service contract with him upon such
terms and conditions as it may think fit and to do all such acts
and things to give effect to such matters.
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

To re-appoint Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu CPA Ltd. and Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu as the Company’s PRC and international
auditors respectively for the year of 2008 and to authorise the
Board of Directors to determine their remunerations.

By Order of the Board
WU Nianging

Company Secretary
Chongaing, PRC

30th April, 2008

Notes:

(i)

Any shareholder entitled to attend and vote at the meeting
mentioned above is entitled to appoint one or more proxies to
attend and vote at the meeting on his/her behalf in accordance
with the Articles of Association of the Company. A proxy need
not be a shareholder of the Company.

In order to be valid, the proxy form and, if such proxy form
is signed by a person under a power of attorney or other
authority on behalf of the appointer, a notarially certified copy
of that power of attorney or authority shall be deposited at
legal address of the Company (in the case of proxy form of
holder of domestic shares) or at the Company's H Share
Registrars, Hong Kong Registrars Limited, at Rooms 1806-
1807, 18th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’'s Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong (in the case of proxy form of holder of H
shares) not less than 24 hours before the time for holding the
meeting or 24 hours before the time appointed for taking the
poll.
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

(iii)

(iv)

(vii)

Shareholders or their proxies shall produce their identity
documents when attending the meeting.

The register of shareholders of the Company will be closed
from Saturday, 17th May, 2008 to Tuesday, 17th June, 2008
(both dates inclusive), during which period no transfer of
shares will be registered.

Shareholders whose names appear in the register of
shareholders on Saturday, 17th May, 2008 are entitled to
attend and vote at the meeting.

Shareholders who intend to attend the meeting shall complete
and lodge the reply slip for attending the meeting at the
Company’s legal address at 1 Xiexing Cun, Zhongliangshan,
Jiulongpo District, Chongging, the PRC on or
Wednesday, 28th May, 2008. The reply slip may be delivered
to the Company by hand, by post, by cable or by fax (at fax
no.: (86) 23-68830397).

before

The final dividend for the year ended 31st December, 2007 is
expected to be paid on or before Wednesday, 25th June, 2008
to the shareholders whose names appear on the register of
shareholders on Monday, 26th May, 2008.
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

(viii) In order to qualify for the final dividend mentioned above,

(ix)

(xi)

holders of H shares whose transfers have not been registered
shall deposit the transfers together with the relevant share
certificates, at the Company’s H Share Registrars, Hong Kong
Registrars Limited at Shops 1712-6, 17th Floor, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’'s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, not
later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 16th May, 2008.

The Annual General Meeting is not expected to take more than
half a day. Shareholders or their proxies attending the Annual
General Meeting shall be responsible for their own travel and
accommodation expenses.

Concerning item 5 of this notice, the Company has received a
letter from Mr. Yoshiyuki MIYATAKE resigning as an executive
director of the Company with effect from the approval of the
shareholders at the annual general meeting. Mr. Yoshiyuki
MIYATAKE confirmed that he has no disagreement with the
Board of Directors and there is no other matter in relation to
his resignation that need to be brought to the attention of the
shareholders of the Company.

Concerning item 6 of this notice, the directors wish to state
that Isuzu Motors Limited (“lsuzu”), a substantial shareholder
of the Company, has given written notice to the Company of
the intention to nominate Mr. Makoto TANAKA as candidate
for election as an executive director of the Company in place
Mr. Yoshiyuki MIYATAKE and such candidate has given
written notice to the Company of his willingness to accept the
nomination. The Board of Directors has proposed a resolution
at the Annual General Meeting to elect Mr. Makoto TANAKA
as executive director.
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The biographical details of Mr. Makoto TANAKA are as follows:

Mr. Makoto TANAKA, aged 56, graduated from Nihon
University. He joined lIsuzu in April 1975. He served in
different positions in Isuzu from December 1994 to April 2005,
including supervisor of assembly team (EE £ 1i148) of Large
Size Automobiles Technology Department (AZERTEE),
director of production coordination department (£EEZE RN
#B) of production technology planning office (4£ERTEIZE)
and director of PT public works department (PT T7EE). He
was president of Isuzu Engine Manufacturing Co., (Thailand)
Ltd. (A5 ZFBEBEHIERE1) during the period from
May 2005 to April 2007. He returned to Isuzu in April 2007
and served as PT production executive director (PT £EEHTT
¥&). In addition, he was appointed the general manager of
the Company on 22 April 2008. Save as disclosed above, Mr.
Makoto TANAKA did not hold any directorship in other listed
public companies in the past three years or any other positions
with the Company and other members of the Company’s

group.

Mr. Makoto TANAKA has no interest in the Shares of the
Company within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance. Other than his relationship with Isuzu
Motors Limited, a substantial shareholder of the Company,
as disclosed above, Mr. Makoto TANAKA did not have any
relationship with any other Directors, senior management,
substantial shareholders or controlling shareholders of the
Company.
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

(xii)

Under an authorization to be given by the shareholders of the
Company at the annual general meeting, the Company will
enter into a service contract with Mr. Makoto TANAKA and his
remuneration will be determined by the Board of Directors in
accordance with the terms and conditions of the said service
contract having regard to his duties and responsibilities with
the Company, the Company’'s performance and profitability
and the prevailing market conditions. It is expected that he will
not receive any annual salary.

Save as disclosed above, there are no other matters relating
to his election that need to be brought to the attention of the
shareholders of the Company and there is no other information
required to be disclosed pursuant to any of the requirements
of rule 13.51(2)
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

of the Rules Governing the Listing of

As at the date of this notice, the Board of Directors of the
Company comprises 10 Directors, of which Mr. WU Yun,
Mr. GAO Jianmin, Mr. Yoshiyuki MIYATAKE, Mr. Naotoshi
TSUTSUMI, Mr. LIU Guangming, Mr. PAN Yong, Mr. YUE
Huagiang are executive directors of the Company and Mr.
LONG Tao, Mr. SONG Xiaojiang and Mr. XU Bingjin are
independent non-executive directors of the Company.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

CORPORATE INFORMATION AVAILABLE AT
Qingling Motors Co. Ltd

LEGAL ADDRESS

1 Xiexing Cun,
Zhongliangshan,

Jiulongpo District,

Chongaing,

the People’'s Republic of China

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG
Suite 4901, 49th Floor,

Office Tower, Convention Plaza,

1 Harbour Road,

Wanchai, Hong Kong

COMPANY’S WEBSITE

www.qgingling.com.cn

SHARE REGISTRARS

Hong Kong Registrars Limited
Rooms 1806-1807

18th Floor, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai
Hong Kong

H SHARE LISTING PLACE
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
Share code: 1122

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Bank of China, Chongging Branch

Bank of Communications, Chongging Branch

The Commercial and Industrial Bank of China, Chongging Branch

The Commercial and Industrial Bank of China, Zhongliangshan
Office
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

AUDITORS

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu CPA Ltd.

8/F Office Tower W2

The Towers, Oriental Plaza
1 East Chang An Avenue
Beijing 100738

People’s Republic of China

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
35/F, One Pacific Place
88 Queensway

LEGAL ADVISERS
as to Hong Kong laws:
Woo, Kwan, Lee & Lo
26/F., Jardine House

1 Connaught Place
Central

Hong Kong

as to PRC laws:

Haiwen & Partners

Room 1016

Beijing Silver Tower

No. 2 Dong San Huan North Road
Chao Yang District

Beijing 100027

People’s Republic of China
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